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Characteristics of The Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM?”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be
attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to
forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on
GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to

professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is

given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly,
prospective investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM website at www.hkgem.com in order to

obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The fiscal year 2005 was a challenging yet exciting one for
EPRO. The recent economic upturn creates an improving
market sentiment for businesses. However, competition in the
IT industry remains fierce because of the conservative decision-

making behaviours of IT investors.
BUSINESS REVIEW

The continuous evolution of technology products and services
is an impetus for IT consumers. Customers are relying more
on the expertise of IT professionals to provide services and
solutions to resolve real business problems. Companies and
IT departments are struggling to maintain a healthy operation
cost structure while being pressured to provide the best support
for their external and internal customers. We believe our
competence and knowledge in the industry are the key success
factors in this fierce competitive market place. Over the past
financial year, we continued to focus on the systems integration
and IT application development outsourcing businesses. We
expanded our product portfolio with innovative solutions and
services, as well as started seeking new business potentials in
the US market.

QUALITY EXCELLENCY

As service quality is the underpinning reason for continuous
customer loyalty, our mission is to provide excellent services
to customers by exceeding industry standards. In mid-
December 2004, our HK operation has successfully passed
the CMM Level-3 certification, a well-recognized international
software process management standards, from the Software
Engineering Institute of the United States. Furthermore in
May 2005, our Shanghai operation achieved the CMMI-Level
3 certification, an enhanced version of the CMM. This
achievement is attributable to our accumulated knowledge and
experience in offering professional services to our clients for

the past 20 years.
OUTLOOK

In order to grasp market trends and business opportunities
emerged from the latest economic rebound, we will keep our
commitments to provide quality services to our customers.
The Group is optimistic about continuous growth in our focus
areas, namely systems integration services, IT development
outsourcing services and professional IT services, which will
be achieved through continuous development of a team of
professionals with industry domain expertise, best in class

technology, and strong strategic partner alliances.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMEN'T

£ B W
APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
to all management teams and our colleagues for their
dedication and significant contribution in the past year. I
would also like to extend my sincere appreciation to all our
fellow shareholders, customers and business partners for their

continuous support and confidence to the Group.

On behalf of the Board
HUANG Shaokang
Chairman

26 September 2005
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review

For the financial year ended 30 June 2005, the Group recorded
a turnover of HK$54,822,000 (2004: HK$85,148,000),
representing a decrease of 36% from last year. The decrease
in turnover resulted from the general weak demand in system
integration services, reduced trading in thin-profit margin IT
products and the vanishing of turnover attributed to

subsidiaries disposed of last financial year.

The total operating expenses were HK$31,957,000 for 2005
(2004: HK$43,317,000), representing a decrease of 26%
compared to previous year. It was due to the disposal of
subsidiaries in last year. In addition, the Group had exercised

stringent control on staff costs and various operating expenses.

During the year, the Group disposed of its properties in Kwun
Tong and recorded a gain of approximately HK$6.2 million.
This led to the reduction of the audited net loss attributable
to shareholders from HK$10,750,000 in 2004 to
approximately HK$4,397,000 in 2005.

Comments on Segment Information

The Directors consider that the Group’s primary segment
reporting basis is by business segment. During the current
and the prior year, the Group’s operations relate solely to the
provision of professional IT contract services. No further

business segment information is presented.

Geographical segment turnover and results include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. Approximately
33% and 57% (2004: 28% and 65%) of the Group’s turnover
were derived from Hong Kong and Mainland China

respectively.
Capital Structure

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated cashflows, banking facilities and loan/funding from
a shareholder. The Group continued to exert stringent control
over treasury policies. The Company intends to finance the
Group’s future operations, capital expenditure and the capital

requirement with the existing banking facilities.

As at 30 June 2005, the interest rate of banking facilities was
charged at the range of Hong Kong prime rate +1.5%/-1%
(2004: the interest rate of banking and finance leases facilities

was charged at the range of Hong Kong prime rate +/— 1%).
As at 30 June 2005, the amount of short term bank and other

borrowings of the Group which were repayable within a year
was HK$6,566,000 (2004: HK$11,220,000) and the amount
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

E

of long term bank and other borrowings of the Group which
were repayable over a year was HK$5,169,000 (2004:
HK$8,594,000).

During the year ended 30 June 2005, there was no change to
the capital structure of the Company.

Charges on group assets
The banking facilities of the Group are secured by:

(1) corporate guarantees amounting to an aggregate of
HK$28,300,000 executed by the Company (2004:
HK$28,300,000); and

(i) pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits
amounting to HK$11,868,000 (2004: HK$6,501,000).

Significant Investment/Material Acquisitions/Disposals

In August 2004, a subsidiary of the Group, EPRO Systems
Limited (“EPRO Systems”), and Mr. Yu Wei Bo (“Mr. Yu”),
an independent third party subscribed 55 shares and 45 shares
in Core Merit (BVI) Limited (“Core Merit”) for a cash
consideration of approximately HK$ 1.8 million and HK$
1.4 million respectively. On 6 August 2004, Core Merit
entered into an agreement with Power Gateway Limited, an
independent third party for the subscription of 65% and 35%
interests in a JV company, Digital China ePro Limited (“DC
ePro”), for a cash consideration of approximately HK$3.2
million and HK$1.8 million respectively. Details of the
transaction were made by the Company in the announcement
dated 6 August 2004.

On 10 January 2005, EPRO Systems, entered into the
agreements with independent third parties for the disposal of
the land and buildings and investment properties for a cash
consideration of approximately HK$16.3 million. Details of
the transaction were made by the Company in the

announcement dated 11 January 2005.

On 17 June 2005, Core Merit entered into an agreement
with Chance Right Limited, which was wholly owned by Mr.
Yu, pursuant to which Core Merit agreed to issue 208 shares
to this connected party for a cash consideration of
approximately HK$ 6.8 million. By virtue of this agreement,
the Group’s interest in Core Merit was diluted from 55% to
approximately 17.9%. The Group treated such dilution as a
deemed disposal of partial interest in Core Merit. Details of
the transaction were made by the Company in the

announcement dated 21 June 2005.
Final Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend by the Company for the financial year ended 30
June 2005 (2004: Nil).
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

During the year under review, the Group financed its
operations by internally generated cash flow, banking facilities
provided by banks and loan/funding from a shareholder.

As at 30 June 2005, the Group’s consolidated shareholders’
funds, current assets and net current assets were HK$7,913,000
(2004: HKS$12,358,000), HK$56,142,000 (2004:
HK$48,358,000) and HK$10,721,000 (2004: HK$7,832,000)
respectively. The decrease in shareholders’ funds was mainly

due to the loss for the year.

In respect of the Group’s current assets of HK$56,142,000 as
at 30 June 2005, trade and bills receivable (net of provision
for doubtful debts) accounted for 28% whilst pledged deposit,

cash and cash equivalents accounted for about 50%.

As at 30 June 2005, the Group’s consolidated bank overdrafts
and short-term bank borrowings were HK$6,566,000 (2004:
HK$6,970,000) and HK$Nil (2004: HK$4,250,000)

respectively.

As at 30 June 2005, the Group’s long term loans and other
borrowing totalling HK$5,169,000 is not repayable within

one year.

As at 30 June 2005 the Group’s pledged deposit and cash and
cash equivalents amounted to HK$28,314,000 (2004:
HK$36,200,000).

All of the Group’s pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
bank loans and other borrowings were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States dollars.

As at 30 June 2005, the Group’s gearing ratio (basis: total
liabilities over total assets) was 86% (2004: 80%). Although
the gearing ratio is high, the Directors believe the Group has
sufficient resources to discharge its debts and to satisfy its

commitments and working capital requirements.
Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and Japanese Yen. The Directors
consider the impact of foreign exchange exposure of the Group

is not significant.

At 30 June 2005, the Group had outstanding foreign exchange
forward contract to sell JPY18,810,900 (equivalent to
HK$1,358,000) and buy US$182,453 (equivalent to
HK$1,423,000). The net unrealised profit of this outstanding
foreign exchange forward contract at the balance sheet date
amounted to HK$65,000 and was credited to the income
statement during the year and recorded in other receivables.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

E

Contingent Liabilities

(a)

(b)

The Company had contingent liabilities in respect of
corporate guarantees for banking and finance lease
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries and an associate
in the aggregate amount of HK$28,300,000 (2004:
HK$29,695,000). At the balance sheet date, such
facilities were utilised by the subsidiaries and an
associate to the extent of HK$4,710,000 (2004:
HK$11,894,000).

At 30 June 2005, the Group had executed performance
bonds of HK$8,880,000 (2004: HK$8,880,000) in

respect of certain services provided by the Group.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 30 June 2005, the total number of full time employees

of the Group was 148 (2004: 175). Employees are remunerated

according to their performance and working experience. In

addition to basic salaries and participation in the mandatory

provident fund scheme, staff benefits include medical scheme

and share options. Share options may be granted to employees

based on performance evaluation in order to provide incentive

and reward to them.
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DIRECTORS’AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

g = kB

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and of

the senior management of the Group are set out below.
DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Shaokang (> ), aged 40, is the chairman
of the Group. He joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible
for overall strategy planning, management and development
of the Group. Mr. Huang has over 14 years of experience in
the management of various companies which invest mainly
on the IT and electronic industry. He has solid experiences in
trade and business in the People’s Republic of China,
Singapore and Hong Kong. Mr. Huang studies in the Physics
Department in the University of Hui Zhou, the People’s
Republic of China from 1983 to 1986.

Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong, Daniel (JAIJEJt), aged 35, is the
chief executive officer of the Group. He joined the Group in
2000 and is responsible for development of Group’s software
technology and methodology. Mr. Chow has 13 years of
experience in the IT industry and has worked for key IT
solution providers before joining the Group. He graduated
from Victoria University of Technology, Australia, with a

Bachelor’s degree and a Master’s degree in Computer Science.

Mr. XIN Yi (3£ %), aged 34, is a vice president and a director
of IT development outsourcing services of the Group. Mr.
Xin has more than 11 years of experience in engineering and
management, and he was previously a general manager of one
of the PRC offices of Legend Holdings Limited. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science from Shan Dong

University, the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. LIN Liu (#1 #K), aged 35, is an executive director of the
Group and a director of Shanghai EPRO Software Company
Limited. He joined the company in 2002 and had taken up
various senior positions in IT companies in the People’s
Republic of China and the United States before joining the
Group. Mr. Lin holds a Bachelor of Science in Computer
Science from the Beijing University of Posts &
Telecommunications and a Mater of Science degree in
Computer Science from Columbia University, the United

States.

Mr. ZENG Weiren (% £ N\), aged 42, is an executive director
of the Group. Mr. Zeng joined the Group in 2004. Mr. Zeng
has over 16 years experience in private investment, and he
was previously a director of a major electronic manufacturer

in the People’s Republic of China.

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F#

B EE BB R

A B A2 R A% AR AR T R AR PG 2 TR
FLFE N R N 3 e

H
AT HF

WSS > BUAE40 > BRI TR o Bk
FEAFMARLE > B AL 2 BB
AW A IR R BE R o S AR AT A 1 Y AR
FAF Z5E > EFEBCER AR LE T -
W v 2 N B FEFNER - B n e e A it 2 B2 5y T v
HOr W ARER MR o W R U= E TN
FNARTE rh e B 3E R B N R B G B R

JAIRSESE A > BAR3SHL - AL EWHATHE o M
AR TREMAREE > AR EARELEH 2K
PERE 3 T 50 o A SE A0 B Al B AT 26 B + =
AERCEE o IS S T RS AE 2 RHUR B
UESEY AR R IEEE ST S I EHEEE N
B fR AN R R L A B A

SER ek BLAR3ARE A% g T A AR 4
6 AL UM TS B 2 AR o S TR R Ay
T AT i AF B 2 T 09 0 A4 A R
NGEE = T Y E T YN
IES SR VT T RN

BIAR S > BAE3SHE - AN B 2 AT o e i
SHERMEARAFZESR - O T AFMA
AR FE o RIMAA S EET - L EE R AL
B B 95 B 2 Z W] alVRE 4 2% B8 AR 22 4 v A
7o M5 A 5 A bt 38 T R B A R B R
5% B BF i b EE K 2R S RO AR L B A -

MR NS BUAE42 > BASEMBPTHS o 1
FELE A TR ENAEMAASLM o WA AR AR
EHRAT I 1 64F A B > T AN A A b A A R SR B
—REHRETREMZEF -

EPRO LIMITED 5 & A B\ 7

11



DIRECTORS’AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. YIP Sam Lo (ZE = [#]), aged 58, is a non-executive director
of the Group. He joined the Group in 1992 responsible for
the business development of the Group. Mr. Yip has over 23
years of experience in the IT industry. Prior to joining the
Group, he was the regional manager of a major U.S. computer
company. Mr. Yip graduated from the University of Texas,
the US with a Bachelor’s degree in Mathematics and from the
Texas A & M University, the US with a Master’s degree in

Computing Science.
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LU Wei (% 4&), aged 48, is an associate professor at
University of Science and Technology of China. He has over
16 years of experience in financial management and many
years of practical experience in management consulting for
UN organizations and other international institutions. Mr.
Lu was working with a Sino-Canadian Training and
Consulting Institute since 1988 to 1994. He holds a Master’s
degree in engineering and currently a PhD Candidate in the
University of Science and Technology of China.

Ms. CHEN Yen Yung (B#2%), aged 33. She has over 8
years’ experience in accounting and finance field. She is a
member of the Australian Society of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Chen is
currently a qualified accountant and company secretary of
Zhejiang Yonglong Enterprises Co., Ltd. She studied in The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University for higher certificate in
accountancy and holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce
(accounting) from the Curtin University of Technology,
Western Australia.

Ms. SHI Shu Su (IR % #F), aged 51, is a partner in Hui Zhou
Zhong Hong Xin Yue Long Certified Public Accounts since
2001. She has over 30 years of experience in accountancy and
financial management. Ms. Shi is a registered accountant in

the People’s Republic of China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHIU Sin Ping, Patrick (# #% “F), aged 47, is the general
manager of the Hong Kong operation. He joined the Group
in 2001. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chiu worked in a
renowned multinational consulting firm and was responsible
for project management and enterprise transformation for
various business sectors. Mr. Chiu has over 22 years of
experience in the IT field of the Asia-Pacific market He holds
a Master’s degree in Applied Science, Information Science

from the University of Technology, Australia.

Mr. HE Hua Guang (fi] #'%), age 39, is the general manager
of professional services of the Group. He joined the Group in
1997 and is responsible for the development and management
of the Group’s provision of IT professional services business.
Mr. He has over 13 years of experience in the IT field. He
graduated from the Harbin Institute of Technology, the
People’s Republic of China, with a Bachelor’s degree in
Mechanical & Electronic Engineering and a Master’s degree

in Engineering Management.

Mr. LEE Wai Kuen (1&#4), aged 31, is the finance manager,
qualified accountant and company secretary of the Group.
He has 9 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management. Before joining the Group, Mr. Lee
worked for an international accounting firm and companies
listed in Hong Kong and United Kingdom. Mr. Lee holds a
Bachelor’s degree in accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, and is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of The Association of

Chartered Certified Accountants.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
30 June 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal

activities during the year.
RESULTS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 June 2005 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date

are set out in the financial statements on pages 29 to 80.

HB

Y

HHEEEREEAFFWRE - UAAAF AL
BE CERRENA Z A H IR R B
Wk -

EX 31
AT 2 B Sy R I o B A 2

T R O S WM 15 o A &
5 3 1 A A B I 4 34 T K B ) o

e

REMMBE _BEHRENH=ZTHIEFEEZ R
Je AN ) B AS AR B A R% H 2 BB IR B SO B T i
FHE298H0H -

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION W0 15 % Rl B 2L
RESULTS e
Year ended 30 June
REANH=THIEEE
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
ZRRHA ZRE A SRR ZEREE SRR
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T Tl Filc Tl
TURNOVER BEH
Continuing operations TR AR 54,822 85,148 126,494 177,129 348,532
Discontinued operations C&IFER - - - 25,359 82,106
54,822 85,148 126,494 202,488 430,638
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX  [hBiHi () /H#
Continuing operations FRUR A T (4,352) (10,322) 5,192 (73,032) (26,990)
Discontinued operations RESE: - - - (4,581) (22,190)
(4,352) (10,322) 5,192 (77,613) (49,180)
Tax BB
Continuing operations PSS TE (45) (180) (2,044) (430) (1,080)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE R SO 25
MINORITY W OE#) R
INTERESTS (4,397) (10,502) 3,148 (78,043) (50,260)
Minority interests b B O 43 - (248) 142 6,172 4,029
NET (LOSS)/PROFIT I SRREAL H W
FROM ORDINARY (E#H) /%A E 5
ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS (4,397) (10,750) 3,290 (71,871) (46,231)
14 EPRO LIMITED 5 & A R /A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2005 f3§
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY
INTERESTS

E = g ® &5
W85 P 2 (480

¥R~ AU B A YR RN 2R

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
CRRHE CRFNE CRRE CRF U CRF A
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T 5 oo T T oo T oo
Total assets W B 58,503 61,726 89,878 108,876 229,161
Total liabilities =R ¥k (50,590) (49,120) (70,745) (89,440) (150,679)
Minority interests D B BRBE - (248) - (1,930) (8,505)
7,913 12,358 19,133 17,506 69,977

FIXED ASSETS AND AN INVESTMENT Bl s % A K BB W ¥

PROPERTY

Details of movements in the fixed assets and an investment
property of the Group during the year are set out in notes 13

and 14 to the financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year, together with the reasons
therefor, are set out in notes 24 and 25 to the financial

statements.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro rata basis to existing sharcholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during

the year.
RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity as set out on pages 31 of this annual report.
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The Company’s share premium account, in accordance with
the Companies Law (2000 Revision) of the Cayman Islands,
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. The share premium account may also be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares. At 30 June
2005, the Company did not have any reserves available for
distribution.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 38% of the total sales
for the year and the largest customer included therein
amounted to 10%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 83% of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
to approximately 47%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:
Executive directors:

Mr. Huang Shaokang

Mr. Xin Yi

Mr. Liu Lin

Mr. Zeng Weiren

Mr. Chow Siu Kwong
Daniel

(appointed on 12 August 2005)

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Yip Sam Lo (re-designated from executive
director on 14 December 2004)

Mr. Li Ming Lun* (resigned on 14 March 2005)

Mr. Lu Wei*

Ms. Chen Yen Yung* (appointed on 23 September 2004)

Ms. Shi Shu Su* (appointed on 14 March 2005)

* Independent non-executive directors
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with articles 86 and 87 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Yip Sam Lo, Mr. Lu Wei, Ms. Shi Shu Su
and Mr. Chow Siu Kwong, Daniel will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the Company’s

forthcoming annual general meeting.

The independent non-executive directors are not appointed
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 11 and 13 of this annual

report.
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions and connected
transactions disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements,
no director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during

the year.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART
XV OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE

A.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

At 30 June 2005, the interests or short positions of

the directors and chief executive of the Company in

the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

Company or its associated corporation (within the

meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) disclosed in accordance with

the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

I.

)

DIRECTORS

Aggregate long position in shares (in respect
of positions held pursuant to equity derivatives)
underlying shares and in debentures of the

Company and its associated corporation(s)
Interests in shares (other than pursuant to
equity derivatives such as share options,

warrants to subscribe or convertible bonds)

the Company

R

H
[

YR 2 e 9 BT B B 58 X0V a3k o A A

A.

A AT BB

R RERFERNA=ZTH  KAREE K
AT BB HOR A 2> 7 SR AR B 1 B (O 38 8
Z BN B ([ 25 T W B el ) o6+ 1
) 2 ety ~ M B I 1y B AR 5 b AT ZEAR 9%
A e b T AR 4 2 AR BSOIR R

I. i

1. TR ALY ) R LR B i T 2 By AR
PERANTE THRA 288 - M
Je 03 B AR 75 b 2 0 8 AT

a. R BeAR 2 e 4R (AR AT A TR
(1910 s PR~ T BRI 2 R A v
A AR FR) #F BRAE)

i  ALH
Number of Percentage
ordinary shares of issued

Name of director Capacity interested Notes share capital
AR 1t B BT Kk
o &y W A B &t A H 4
Mr. Huang Shaokang Beneficial owner 161,083,400 (1) 10.06%
b e e R Ha A A
Interest in corporation 266,800,000 (1) 16.67%
7 A 4
Mr. Yip Sam Lo Founder of a 262,577,201 (2) 16.40%
=S discretionary trust
AR FEZ BN
Mr. Liu Lin Interest in corporation 96,094,897 3) 6.00%
MR 5 A 7 A A
ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F#
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART
XV OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

Notes:

e))

)

(3)

Mr. Huang Shaokang was deemed to be
interested in 266,800,000 shares of the
Company which were held through China
Dynamic Enterprises Limited (“China
Dynamic”), a corporation wholly-owned by
Mr. Huang. Apart from the above, Mr.
Huang personally held 161,083,400 shares
of the Company.

These shares were held by Araucarea
Holdings Ltd. (“Araucarea”), a corporation
wholly-owned by TUYF Company Limited
as trustee of The TUYF Unit Trust, a unit
trust of which all of the units in issue are
owned by HSBC International Trustee
Limited in its capacity as the trustee of The
TUYF Family Trust,a discretionary family
trust of which the objects include the family

members of Mr. Yip Sam Lo.

Accordingly, Mr. Yip, as founder of The
TUYF Family Trust was deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held

by Araucarea.

Mr. Liu Lin was deemed to be interested in
96,094,897 shares of the Company which
were held through Kingston View
International Limited (“Kingston View”), a

corporation wholly-owned by Mr. Liu.
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B 0 25 20 S5 49 9 XV B 2 40

(1) D e 56 AR AR 2 172 266,800,000
WA W ey P R R4S - A
JBe 0y Ty i e R A 2
# China Dynamic Enterprises
Limited ([ China Dynamicl))
H oo B Bl H A > B A AR
F161,083,400/8 7 24 &) B4y ©

(2) W% % Ky TUYF Company
LimitedZ 4 & /% A Araucarea
Holdings Ltd. ([ Araucarea |) (1E
% The TUYF Unit Trust {5 7€
N) ¢4 © The TUYF Unit Trust
By S FE » A e AT AL
fH HSBC International Trustee
Limited (fF 25 The TUYF Family
Trustf 15 58 N S 3) #EH © The
TUYF Family Trust/ 2 & ik (5
Wb H ARG TH R aRFEE =M
Fe AR KR E -

W > BESEE (FF % The TUYF
Family Trusc9 81 ¥ ) #5457 2 ik
Araucarea® A7 Z A< 22w i £y v B
A RS -

(3) bR 5 A= B 7 1% 96,094,897 1%
A A T B AR o %S
B3 38 W Sk A R 2 AT
Kingston View International
Limited ([ Kingston View]) #§5 °
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART
XV OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

(ii)

Associated corporation -EPRO Systems Limited
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company)

R

H
[

HR YR 25 e 39 B B B S X VI B SR A A ()

non-voting deferred

shares interested in

(ii) HH 8% 1% B — EPRO Systems Limited
(AN i 22 T 42 4 g 2 )

Number of Percentage of
total issued

non-voting

Name of director Capacity associated corporation Note deferred shares
7 AH T i BBAT
% [ B A 25 I 452 5
Z B 3 S I Ay
LA & A S By W H Wit ik AW 4 b
Founder of a
Mr. Yip Sam Lo discretionary trust

= e A HEAR FCZ A 5,112,991 (D 33.86%

Note: Bt -
(1) These shares were held by Araucarea, a (1) W% % Ky TUYF Company

corporation wholly-owned by TUYF
Company Limited as trustee of The TUYF
Unit Trust, a unit trust of which all of the
units in issue are owned by HSBC
International Trustee Limited in its capacity
as the trustee of The TUYF Family Trust, a
discretionary family trust of which the
objects include the family members of Mr.

Yip Sam Lo.

Accordingly, Mr. Yip, as founder of The
TUYF Family Trust was deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held

by Araucarea.

Interests in debentures
The Company or its associated corporations

had not issued any debentures.

20 EPRO LIMITED % ¥ A R\ A

Limited ¥ 4 & 7~ A Araucarca ({E
% The TUYF Unit TrustfJ 15 &

N) $if5 °» The TUYF Unit Trust
FEAE R  HAeTE 8T AL
HH HSBC International Trustee
Limited (fE 25 The TUYF Family
TrustfI {5 5L AN 5 13) %A ° The
TUYF Family Trusc£ 4= # % & 15
gL HAMGEH S amE=MN
T KR A -

Bt FESE A (FE 45 The TUYF
Family Trusc9 81 HE A) #0815 i
Araucarea 2 AN & B Ay v HE
FMESR o
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART
XV OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

(©)

(ii)

Interests in underlying shares (in respect of

positions held pursuant to equity derivatives)

the Company (physically settled equity

derivatives)

E = g ® &5
B 0 25 20 S5 49 9 XV B 2 40

)

TR AR B e 13 b 2 M2 CRI AR BBE A
ETARAZER)

Ao A (WA e A AT 2E T A

Number of
underlying Percentage
ordinary of issued
Name of director Capacity shares interested share capital
AR Z il C B AT A
£ 3 g A 3 i Je o H "k

Mr. Yip Sam Lo Beneficial owner

HE =k Ha A A 19,863,670 1.24%
# Details of the above share options as required # | 7 7 SRR Tl AR GE A B

to be disclosed by the GEM Listing Rules have
been disclosed in note 25 to the financial

Statements.
Associated corporation
No such interest was reported by the Directors.

Aggregate short position in shares and (in
respect of positions held pursuant to equity
derivatives) underlying shares and in debentures

of the

corporation(s)

Company and its associated

No such short position was reported by the

Directors.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART
XV OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

II. CHIEF EXECUTIVES

1. Aggregate long position in shares and (in
respect of positions held pursuant to equity
derivatives) underlying shares and in debentures

of the

corporation(s)

Company and its associated

No such interest was reported by any chief

executive of the Company.

2. Aggregate short position in shares and (in
respect of positions held pursuant to equity
derivatives) underlying shares and in debentures

of the

corporation(s)

Company and its associated

No such short position was reported by any

chief executive of the Company.

In addition to the above, some Directors are holding shares
in the Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Company in a non-
beneficial interest to meet the minimum shareholder

requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2005, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were they
taken to or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO, any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or
any interest which were required to be entered into the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
any interest which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rule

5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART IR 7 I B B SBX VI B B HE A% (4

XV OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

B. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS B.

As at 30 June 2005, the interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

1. Aggregate long position in shares and (in
respect of positions held pursuant to equity

derivatives) underlying shares of the Company

a. Interests in shares (other than pursuant to
equity derivatives such as share options,

warrants to subscribe or convertible bonds)

Name

capital Capacity

# g0

China Dynamic Beneficial owner
HamEA A

Ms. Yip Chi Yu Interest of spouse

E ic {1 W

Araucarea Beneficial owner
HamEA A

TUYF Company Limited Trustee
FREA

HSBC International Trustee

Trustee Limited PN
Ms. Tai Fung Founder of a
discretionary trust

N e EX AR IF N

Kenn &K (BVI) Limited Beneficial owner
HamEA A

Kwong Chak Chung Interest in corporation

B 35 2N ) RE A

Ms. Lau King Sau, Kenzie Interest of spouse

Bt ic i W

Kingston View Beneficial owner
JLEE ZEDN

Ms. Ma Li Interest of spouse

K&+ ic i W i

P38

MOEERAENAZTH  REEE Y
AV 151 55 3360 KL B AR 48 A AT B 2 B we A
T Bk A A ] R B A B Ry R 2 R g B
RIFWE

1. TRALS TR T GRAR B8 A AT 22 T
B 2858 M B B T 2 i A
Ll

a. AR 2 e 4R (AR AT A2 TR
(1910 o g P~ T BRI 2 R A v
A AR FR) #F BRAE)

Number of Percentage
ordinary shares of issued
interested Notes share
AR Z O AT A
W e B H Bt it w4t
266,800,000 (1) 16.67%
427,883,400 (2) 26.73%
262,577,201 (3) 16.40%
262,577,201 (4) 16.40%
262,577,201 (4) 16.40%
262,577,201 (4) 16.40%
101,168,489 (5) 6.31%
101,168,489 (5) 6.31%
101,168,489 (6) 6.31%
96,094,897 (7) 6.00%
96,094,897 (8) 6.00%
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART
XV OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

Notes:

(1)

2

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

The interest of China Dynamic has also been
disclosed as the interests of Mr. Huang
Shaokang in the above paragraph under
“Disclosure of interests under Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance —

Directors and Chief Executives”.

Ms. Yip Chi Yu was deemed to be interested
in the 427,883,400 shares of the Company
through interests of her spouse, Mr. Huang
Shaokang.

The interest of Araucarea has also been
disclosed as the interests of Mr. Yip Sam Lo
in the above paragraph under “Disclosure
of interests under Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance — Directors and
Chief Executives”.

These shares were held by Araucarea, a
corporation wholly-owned by TUYF
Company Limited as trustee of The TUYF
Unit Trust, a unit trust of which all of the
units in issue are owned by HSBC
International Trustee Limited in its capacity
as the trustee of The TUYF Family Trust, a
discretionary family trust of which the
objects include the family members of Ms.
Tai Fung. Accordingly, Ms. Tai, as founder
of The TUYF Family Trust was deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company
held by Araucarea.

Mr. Kwong Chak Chung was deemed to be
interested in 101,168,489 shares of the
Company which were held through Kenn
&K (BVI) Limited, a corporation wholly-
owned by Mr. Kwong.

Ms. Lau King Sau, Kenzie was deemed to
be interested in the 101,168,489 shares of
the Company through interests of her
spouse, Mr. Kwong Chak Chung.

The interest of Kingston View has also been
disclosed as the interests of Mr. Liu Lin in
the above paragraph under “Disclosure of
interests under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance — Directors and Chief

Executives”.

Ms. Ma Li was deemed to be interested in
the 96,094,897 shares of the Company
through interests of her spouse, Mr. Liu Lin.
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(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

China DynamicZ #E % 78 ©JA I
B [ 95 78 5 B ) 6 A6k 491 26 XV R
P RERR — % 3 AT B B
oy DR A 2R o

B TR AN L - R 2 98 ot L A
o R a1 RN
427,883,400 I 1 A7 W £ o

AraucareaZ W 25 78 B % | B[R
P8 78 I K ) B W ) 56 XV R B ER
ME fs — 6 95 JAT B | LR S
WA 2R

W% % Iy B TUYF Company
LimitedZ 4% & 23 # Araucarea (fF
%% The TUYF Unit TrustZ {5 &€
N) £#4H ° The TUYF Unit Trust
LyEAERE > AT O TR AL
f HSBC International Trustee
Limited (fE % The TUYF Family
TrustZ 5 E N & 0) #EH © The
TUYF Family Trust/h 2 HE R A5
FE o HERGTHROFH IR L
L2 FEWE - Hi > #E &L
(£ 25 The TUYF Family TrustZ
B HE ) WA 2 A Araucaread ¥ A7
ZARN R Ay AR A

Ji T s S A WAL i R A R
%) Kenn &K (BVI) Limited ¥ A 4
N T Z2101,168,489 8% B3 B A
WEZE o

B 358 75 Lo WA 4 925 0 EL A B
1A Sk 2 RE 25 O A A A
101,168,489 /1% [ 3 4 45 1 i o

Kingston ViewZ HE fit JR8 T A | B
[R5 78 I3 I W) 65 M 191 265 XV 3R %
5 HE o5 — BT AT BUAR AR B R
WIS A 22 45 o

J5 77 L A5 2 7 3 EL A D AR
So k2 M R MmO A A A
96,094,897 % % 4y v #E A HE 75 o
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART
XV OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (Continued)

b. Interests in underlying shares (in respect of

positions held pursuant to equity derivatives)

(i) the Company (physically settled equity

derivatives)

Name of substantial

shareholder Capacity

E B 5 by

Ms. Tai Fung Interest of spouse
R L+ i 1 HE i

Notes:

(1) Ms. Tai Fung was deemed to be interested

in 19,863,670 share options through

interests of her spouse, Mr. Yip Sam Lo.

Details of the above share options as required
to be disclosed by the GEM Listing Rules have
been disclosed in note 25 to the financial

Statements.

2. Aggregate short position in shares and (in
respect of positions held pursuant to equity

derivatives) underlying shares of the Company
No such interest was reported to the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2005, no person, other
than the Directors whose interests are set out in the above
paragraph under “Disclosure of interests under Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance — Directors and Chief
Executives”, had registered an interest or a short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Number of
underlying Percentage
ordinary shares of issued
interested Notes share capital
B A RE 25 2 A B 1 B8 A7
W e W H Wt AH S b
19,863,670* (1) 1.24%

Wit L

(1) B L AT 2 7 o L A B =
M S 2B 22 ME 25 1 i 19,863,67015%
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed in the share option scheme in note 25
to the financial statements, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any directors or
their respective spouse or children under 18 year of age, or
were any rights exercised by them;or was the Company, or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the

Company to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Details of movements in share options during the year are set

out in note 25 to the financial statements.
INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
directors, the management sharcholders of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, have engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group

or has any other conflict of interests within the Group.
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the

Group are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company complied with the corporate governance matters
as set out in Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules

which were in force until 1 January 2005.

As Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules incorporated
amendments in relation to the Code On Corporate Governance
Practices which became effective on 1 January 2005 subject
to the transitional arrangements, the Company has been taking

action to follow the code provisions set out therein.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, all directors confirmed that they have
complied with required standard of dealings and code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors of the

Company.
The Company has received, from each independent non-

executive director, an annual confirmation of his/her

independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (the “Committee”)
with written terms of reference in compliance with the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Committee are to review and provide supervision over
the financial reporting process and internal control of the
Group. The Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, Mr. Lu Wei, Ms. Chen Yen Yung and
Ms. Shi Shu Su. The Group’s financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2005 have been reviewed by the
Committee, who were of the opinion that such statements
complied with the applicable accounting standards, the Stock
Exchange and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures
had been made. The Committee held four meetings since July
2004.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young acted as auditors of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2003 and 2004. CWCC acted as the auditors
of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2005.

CWCC retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

HUANG Shaokang
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 September 2005
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To the members
e PRO Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 29 to 80
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view
it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently. It is our responsibility to
form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those
financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes an
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the Company’s and the Group’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30 June 2005 and of the loss and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CwcCC
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 September 2005
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(=] N/
oA B o &m K
2005 2004
SERHEE  RENE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Wit F il Tt 5E
TURNOVER (= 5 54,822 85,148
Other revenue and gains At dse A Bzl 25 5 6,763 2,698
Cost of goods sold B o B A (33,562) (54,664)
Selling and distribution costs B B K Ay 8 R AR (906) (1,423)
Technical expenses e Aly BA 32 (11,489) (14,305)
Administrative expenses A7 BB 3¢ (19,543) (27,386)
Other operating expenses, net H A A& BA S - AR (19) (203)
LOSS FROM OPERATING BN B e 18
ACTIVITIES 6 (3,934) (10,135)
Surplus on revaluation of HAG & i
leasehold land and buildings MM 2 B - 687
Finance costs il Y AR 9 (952) (1,037)
Share of profits of associates 43 A B 7 A T 2 s A 534 163
LOSS BEFORE TAX W it il s 15 (4,352) (10,322)
Tax i IH 10 (45) (180)
LOSS BEFORE MINORITY Rt A BB R AE 28
INTERESTS T s 45 (4,397) (10,502)
Minority interests D BB RORE 25 - (248)
NET LOSS FROM JBE SRR A H
ORDINARY ACTIVITIES KW 2 e
ATTRIBUTABLE TO e
SHAREHOLDERS 11 (4,397) (10,750)
LOSS PER SHARE i J1% i 48
(HK cents) : (¥ Al )
Basic H AR 12 (0.27) (0.73)
Diluted i N/A N/A
A A7
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

30

8 &

P

=~

2005 2004
“ERRLE TR 4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 7 F#c T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I W)
Fixed assets [ %E & 13 1,362 8,796
Investment property TGk 14 - 3,150
Interests in associates RN 16 682 1,105
Other assets HoAh & 317 317
2,361 13,368
CURRENT ASSETS i B B
Inventories ety 17 7,501 1,820
Trade and bills receivables JE I & 5 bR R T SRR 18 15,583 6,078
Prepayments,deposits and TEAT I ~ 4% E K
other receivables L thy 8 Wi K TH 4,463 3,979
Tax recoverable CIN QIR 281 281
Pledged deposits O HE 0 7 3k 19 11,868 6,501
Cash and cash equivalents He kB &5 HER 19 16,446 29,699
56,142 48,358
CURRENT LIABILITIES B A
Trade and bills payables JRE S 2 BR kK SR 20 12,073 4,737
Other payables and accruals Al AT A T % E w6 21 17,530 16,181
Deposits received C % <& 1,258 751
Deferred revenue % AW 47 2,087 1,730
Tax payable JRE A Bt IH 5,907 5,907
Interest-bearing bank and ah B ERAT
other borrowings Atk £ 3Kk 22 6,566 11,220
45,421 40,526
NET CURRENT ASSETS it ) ¥ A 10,721 7,832
TOTAL ASSETS LESS AR E VA B £ A
CURRENT LIABILITIES 13,082 21,200
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3k B £ fif
Interest-bearing bank and W B ERAT
other borrowings A A K 22 5,169 8,594
MINORITY INTERESTS A BB R 25 - 248
7,913 12,358
CAPITAL AND RESERVES T AR B At A
Issued capital B BT A 24 16,008 16,008
Reserves fiti 26(a) (8,095) (3,650)
7,913 12,358
HUANG Shaokang LIU Lin
AR Ak
Director Director
#=H HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= A 3 < &
T = N B X
Issued Share Exchange
share  premium Capital Accumulated ~fluctuation
capital account reserve losses reserve Total
BT Tt SME
Bk RO BARS  RER  RBEE At
Notes HK$000  HK$000*  HK$000*  HK$000*  HK$000*  HK$'000
i3 Ti#r  T#x:  Ti#Err  TEr T TExL
At 1 July 2003 RE-FE=ELtH—H 110,400 7,025 479 (99,093) 322 19,133
Foreign exchange adjustments Sh T = = — — (50) (50)
Net loss not recognised in 4 3 ol e 2
the income statement IR = = = = (50) (50)
Reduction of capital Il A A 24(a) (99,360) - — 99,360 — -
Issue of shares BTG 24(b) 4,968 497 — — — 9,465
Share issue expenses B 4 17 R 5% 24(b) — (1,402) — — = (1,402)
Release upon partial disposal it 4 I A R
of subsidiaries 1 45 155 7 27(a) — — (144) = 106 (38)
Net loss for the year AE B R A — — — (10,750) — (10,750)
At 30 June 2004 REZZFZNESA=ZFH 16,008 6,120 335 (10,483) 378 12,358
At 1 July 2004 REZENELA—H 16,008 6,120 35 (10,483) 378 12,358
Foreign exchange adjustments M 3 — — — — (48) (48)
Net loss not recognised in BE & ol B
the income statement ZBHITH — — — — (48) (48)
Net loss for the year AAEEER A = = = (4,397) = (4,397)
At 30 June 2005 NZERAFEAAZTH 16,008 6,120 335 (14,880) 330 7913
Reserves retained by: A RO B 2 Gk
Company and subsidiaries AN T W R 16,008 6,120 287 (15471) 330 7,074
Associates Big a vl — — 48 591 — 639
At 30 June 2005 REZZZHREAA=FH 16,008 6,120 335 (14,880) 330 7,913
Reserves retained by: NIPNTEYpa1
Company and subsidiaries AR R W R 16,008 6,120 287 (10,585) 403 12,233
Associates Y O — — 48 102 (25) 125
At 30 June 2004 RZZFZNERA=ZFH 16,008 6,120 335 (10,483) 378 12,358

*

& U35 (1 R € 97 A 1 D AR A BT B o HE 2

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated negative reserves
in aggregate of HK$8,095,000 (2004: HK$3,650,000) in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The share premium account of the Group includes (i) the
premium arising from the new issue of the shares in the prior
years net of share issue expenses; and (ii) the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation upon listing in July 2000
over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor. Further details of the group
reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 27 July 2000.

The capital reserve represents negative goodwill arising on

acquisition of subsidiaries which remains credited to the capital
reserve.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

= A PaN
g &5 1’2

2 = +
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2005 2004
“RELE —FFNE
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt &% T#T T
CASH FLOWS FROM BB R
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax [%% 6. I M (4,352) (10,322)
Adjustments for: LU A
Finance costs CiS =g N 9 952 1,037
Share of profits of associates PR Iep =/ P | (534) (163)
Surplus on revaluation A5 AH B ol &%
of leasehold land and buildings MEF 2 B R - (687)
Interest income FB U A 5 (140) (85)
Depreciation e 6 1,069 1,786
(Gain)/loss on disposal i [ E
of fixed assets Z (k) 18 5,6 (6,283) 13
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B g A R 2 i i 5 - (2,260)
Fixed assets written off ] 7 T 6 184 -
Provision for impairment of TR AR & BB 2
investment in Z B EWAE
non-consolidated subsidiary Ak 6 1,788 =
Provision for amount due from JRE e — [ W 2 4
an associate K TE 5 A 6 - 101
Reversal of provision for A7 B 3 A 43 1
inventories 6 (112) (269)
Provision for other receivables H At R S K I 435 A 6 - 3,195
Provision for doubtful debts R IR HE A 6 27 483
Write back of provision 175 ] 2R B 435 A
for doubtful debts 6 (354) (3,413)
Operating loss before working R Eh A a5 E)
capital changes — page 33 s HE - 533H (7,755) (10,584)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FL.OW STATEMENT

N =
oA B o2 "R OE W OK
2005 2004
“RELE —FFNE
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt &% T#T T
Operating loss before working Kt E &S HH
capital changes — page 32 Mk — E328 (7,755) (10,584)
Increase in inventories 7 & (5,569) (11,511)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and JE W R gy B K M B R
bills receivables () WA (8,265) 13,871
Increase in prepayments, deposits TAAT FE ~ 4% 4 K H A g
and other receivables WAL K TE 24 n (484) (7,302)
Decrease in amounts due JE A & %) % F R IA
to contract customers Ik — (496)
Increase in trade and bills JE A ) B R % SRR
payables 4 m 7,181 8,589
Increase in other payables and At R ASE I e R B
accruals B4 T 1,348 5,864
Increase/(decrease) in deposits B iz &1, ()
received 506 (2,082)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred IR A £ 38 (k)
revenue 357 (363)
Decrease in balances with associates 5 B %5 2 7] &5 ik I 2 - 1,092
Foreign exchange adjustments HNIE 3 28 (309) (96)
Cash used for operations KE % BT BT B 4 (12,990) (3,018)
PRC tax paid 2 A o B B A - (1,383)
Net cash outflow from BEEBZ B &
operating activities AR | (12,990) (4,401)
CASH FLOWS FROM BEWEH Bl &R
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received £ Wi AR 5 140 85
Purchases of fixed assets i B A 13 (637) (504)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed B ] R M 2
assets and investment property T 45 3R H 16,264 362
Investment in a non-consolidated A G D 8 A R 2 S A
subsidiary 15(d) (1,788) =
Disposal of subsidiaries B B A 27(a) - (272)
Proceeds from disposal of A RS
a jointly-controlled entity NGRS Q| 27(b) - 8,920
Proceeds from disposal of Hh A — [ T 42 2% W T A5 K H
an associate 27(b) — 2,817
Increase in investment in BOmR — MBS AR 2R E
an associate — (190)
(Increase)/decrease in B AE 2K (3% ) b
pledged deposits (5,367) 3,218
Net cash inflow from BB B 2 B A
investing activities ekl 8,612 14,436
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

= a5 B o= A 2 W OXK

2005 2004
“ERRLE e o S UNEES
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
i it T#T T T
CASH FLOWS FROM il 5 4 B 2 B 4 it
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on loans and ST B R B 3 2 R S
overdrafts 9 (952) (1,037)
Proceeds from issue of share capital #5417 it A4S It 15 3036 24(b) - 5,465
Share issue expenses s 4y %% 47 B 52 24(b) - (1,402)
Repayment of long term bank 18 72 = ) SR AT B K
and other loans HAth £ 3Kk (7,675) (4,034)
Increase/(decrease) in trust (EIRA L& S
receipt loans B, () 156 (2,819)
Net cash outflow from Pl T B 2 B4 U i AR
financing activities (8,471) (3,827)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE Bl & KBl &% HIEH
IN CASH AND CASH G A) 84
EQUIVALENTS (12,849) 6,208
Cash and cash equivalents EP B e KB eSEMEEE
at beginning of year 22,729 16,521
CASH AND CASH ERBERBE
EQUIVALENTS AT END EHIEH
OF YEAR 9,880 22,729
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF Bl & KBl &% i
CASH AND CASH W H &k AT
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B K SRAT 45 R 19 6,608 23,918
Time deposits with original A7 RS 2 51 H A
maturity of less than =18 H zZ & 77 3
three months when acquired 9,838 5,781
Bank overdrafts,secured RAITE X H KA 22 (6,566) (6,970)
9,880 22,729
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BALANCE SHEET

g2 E B8

& =

2005 2004
“ERRLE TR 4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 7 F oo T T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS I W)
Interest in subsidiaries B} Jog 2N &) o 2 A g 15 - -

CURRENT ASSETS i ) B A
Due from subsidiaries JRE Wi o Jig 2 D K I 15 - =
Other receivables S Athy JEE Wi R IH 1 =
Pledged deposits AL /e 19 6,528 6,501
Cash and cash equivalents B K B4 S5 H I H 19 10,512 15,796
17,041 22,297
CURRENT LIABILITIES i B £

Due to a subsidiary JRE A — [H] B} Jo8 2 ] ik JH 15 143 =
Other payables and accruals A JRE A5} Kk TEL K HE R B MR 21 740 500
Bank overdrafts BRATIE X 24 16
907 516
NET CURRENT ASSETS it ) X 16,134 21,781
16,134 21,781

CAPITAL AND RESERVES JBE AR B it A
Issued capital AT kA 24 16,008 16,008
Reserves Tt A 26(b) 126 5,773
16,134 21,781

HUANG Shaokang LIU Lin
A 0 bk
Director Director
# HH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

~ =
B % R
CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
on 15 March 2000 under the Companies Law (2000
Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the
Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(the “GEM?”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 2 August 2000.

During the year, the Group was involved in the
provision of professional information technology (“IT”)

contract services.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In year 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) issued a number of
new or revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs”) which are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2005. The Group has not early adopted
these new HKFRSs in the financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2005.

The Group has commenced considering the potential
impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to determine whether these new HKFRSs
would have a significant impact on how its results of
operations and financial position are prepared and
presented. These new HKFRSs may result in changes
in the future as to how the results and financial

position are prepared and presented.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for the periodic
remeasurement of leasehold land and buildings and
investment property which are stated at professional

valuation, as further explained below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 30 June 2005. The
results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are consolidated from or to their effective
dates of acquisition or disposal, respectively. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.
Minority interests

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the

Company’s subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company, other than a jointly-
controlled entity, whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.
Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of
the equity voting rights and over which it is in a

position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are
stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting less any impairment losses. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates, is included as part

of the Group’s interests in associates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
associates represents the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair values of
the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the

date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised
on the straight- line basis over its estimated useful life
of five years. In the case of associates, any unamortised
goodwill is included in the carrying amount thereof,
rather than as a separately identified asset in the

consolidated balance sheet.

On disposal of subsidiaries or associates, the gain or
loss on disposal is calculated by reference to the net
assets at the date of disposal, including the attributable
amount of goodwill which remains unamortised and
any relevant reserves, as appropriate. Any attributable
goodwill previous eliminated against consolidated
reserve at the time of acquisition is written back and
included in the calculation of the gain or loss on

disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill, including goodwill
remaining eliminated against consolidated reserves, is
reviewed annually and written down for impairment
when it is considered necessary. A previously recognised
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed unless
the impairment loss was caused by a specific external
event of an exceptional nature that was not expected
to recur, and subsequent external events have occurred

which have reversed the effect of that event.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries, associates and jointly-controlled entities
represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired
as at the date of acquisition, over the cost of the

acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to
expectations of future losses and expenses that are
identified in the acquisition plan and that can be
measured reliably, but which do not represent
identifiable liabilities as at the date of acquisition, that
portion of negative goodwill is recognised as income
in the consolidated profit and loss account when the

future losses and expenses are recognised.

To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to
identifiable expected future losses and expenses as at
the date of acquisition, negative goodwill is recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account on a
systematic basis over the remaining average useful life
of the acquired depreciable/amortisable assets. The
amount of any negative goodwill in excess of the fair
values of the acquired non-monetary assets is

recognised as income immediately.

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 “Business
combinations” in 2001, negative goodwill arising on
acquisitions was credited to the capital reserve in the
year of acquisition. On the adoption of SSAP 30, the
Group applied the transitional provision of the SSAP
that permitted such negative goodwill to remain
credited to the capital reserve. Negative goodwill on
acquisitions subsequent to the adoption of the SSAP
is treated according to the SSAP 30 negative goodwill

accounting policy above.

On disposal of subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of
disposal, including the attributable amount of negative
goodwill which has not been recognised in the
consolidated income statement and any relevant
reserves as appropriate. Any attributable negative
goodwill previously credited to the capital reserve at
the time of acquisition is written back and included

in the calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of
whether there is any indication of impairment of any
asset, or whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss previously recognised for an asset in
prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
calculated at the higher of the asset’s value in use or

its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, when the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of an asset,
however not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued

asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after fixed assets have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it
can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed
asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional

cost of that asset.

Changes in the values of fixed assets are dealt with as
movements in the revaluation reserve. If the total of
this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the income statement to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a

movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each asset over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Leaschold land Over the lease terms

Buildings 2%-5%
Leasehold improvements 20%-50%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Computer equipment and software 18%-33 '/3%
Motor vehicles 20%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset recognised in the income statement is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings in respect of which construction work and
development have been completed and which are
intended to be held on a long term basis for their
investment potential, any rental income being
negotiated at arm’s length. Such properties are not
depreciated and are stated at their open market values
on the basis of annual professional valuations

performed at he end of each financial year.

Changes in the values of investment properties are
dealt with as movements in the investment property
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cove a deficit, on a portfolio basis, the
excess of the deficit is charged to the income statement.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the
income statement to the extent of the deficit previously

charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the relevant
portion of the investment property revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is released to

the income statement.
Other assets

Other assets represent corporate membership held for
long term which are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement

as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
projects are clearly defined;the expenditure is separately
identifiable and can be measured reliably;there is
reasonable certainty that the project are technically
feasible;and the products have commercial value.
Product development expenditure which does not meet

these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased
asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases are included in fixed assets
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance
costs of such leases are charged to the income statement
so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge

over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of the assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under such operating leases are charged to the
profit and loss account on the straight-line basis over

the lease terms.
Inventories

Inventories represent trading merchandise and direct
costs incurred for IT contract work in progress and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices

less estimated costs expected to be incurred to disposal.
Contract accounting

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims
and incentive payments arising from professional IT
contract services. Contract costs incurred comprise
equipment and material costs, subcontracting costs,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable

and fixed overheads.

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the proportion of work completed to date

to the estimated total work of the relevant contract.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Contract accounting (Continued)

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they

are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as an amount due from contract

customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract

customers.
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

managcment.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature

to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in
advance. Revenue is recognised and deferred revenue
is released to the income statement when the

corresponding services are rendered.
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the income statement or in equity
if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or

a different period, directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences:

. except where the deferred tax liability arises
from goodwill or the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, except
where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax assets
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be

utilised:

. except where the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences arises from
negative goodwill or the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilised.

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F3

81

3.

o x K F
KRl R B )

B3 B (AH)

R A L L BT AT BB B 3 BT
WAFERE -

. P i 7% A AT HE TH ZE By R A 7 R B )
A Tl A BB R A A HE IR
B HazHe o —HZEH &
B RF > 37 S 355 B S i A K R SRR U
M) B s 15 A 2 B B A s I

c BB ] B A FBCE R
N T HE 25 AH B 2 i SR B R 2 52
M5 o M A £ ] R I 22 B2 2 I ] AT
T LI B 22 5L A] BEAS R R]
S A 485 [m] B A 9

A SIE Tl JEL T E T % P A AT S B R 2 B
R M BLIEE A K& O Bl IE s 1R 2 &5 8T LU
TlE SR - M9 W TG I i R 22 L - R I BLIH &
FE R R P AT HE 1B T e 4R 2 A e R A
S EE L e b PR R LA AT B B 2 e SR A
it A1) 28 A IR

c ik 7 2 4T S TH 32 B Ry B i B o R
B2 e w A BB AR T
s B AR R E B HE E > HZH
35 W I — TR EHS & HF R - 7 S8
s A B R B s A S 18N AL
B AE R &

c AL BEL R o ) - W N W 2 BUE T
B O T HE 2 AH BE 2 AT 1Bl B R ==
B E - 0 HE B TH A I 2
FL ] BE A AT R A A ] > T R SR AL
i 1) AT T B FH AR B R I 2 B IR AR T

277
AR ©

EPRO LIMITED 5 #H A R A A 45



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a) from the provision of professional IT contract
services, based on the stage of completion of
the respective IT contracts, which is determined
with reference to the terms of the contracts;

(b) interest income, on a time proportion basis
taking into account the principal outstanding
and the effective interest rate applicable;

(c) management fee income, when the services are
rendered;

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms.
Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the
applicable exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated at the applicable exchange rates ruling at
that date. Exchange differences are dealt with in the

income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries and associates are translated into Hong
Kong dollars using the net investment method. The
income statement of overseas subsidiaries and associates
are translated to Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year, and their balance
sheets are translated to Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting translation differences are included in the

exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated to Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated to Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.
Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or

corporate entities.
Employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the balance sheet date is
permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual
is made at the balance sheet date for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year

by the employees and carried forward.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % %

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event
of the termination of their employment. The Group is
liable to make such payments in the event that such a
termination of employment meets the circumstances

specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable
future long service payments expected to be made.
The provision is based on the best estimate of the
probable future payments which have been earned by
the employees from their service to the Group to the

balance sheet date.
Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees

when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central

pension scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. The financial impact of share
options granted under the share option scheme is not
recorded in the Company’s or the Group’s balance
sheet until such time as the options are exercised, and
no charge is recorded in the income statement or
balance sheet for their cost. Upon the exercise of share
options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by
the Company as additional share capital at the nominal
value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price
per share over the nominal value of the shares is
recorded by the Company in the share premium
account. Options which are cancelled prior to their
exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from the

register of outstanding options.
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The directors consider that the Group’s primary
segment reporting basis is by business segment. During
the current and the prior year, the Group’s operations
related solely to the provision of professional IT
contract services and accordingly, no further business

segment information is presented.
Geographical segments
The following table presents turnover, certain asset
and capital expenditure information for the Group’s
geographical segments.
Group

Hong Kong Mainland China

#i A
W05 004 205 2004
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Eliminations Consolidated

nk i hh
W4 205 04 2005 2004 2005 2004

CERNE CTTNE ZRRAE “FTNE SRR0E CTTNE ZRF0E “RONE ZRR0E “RRNE S0 E “TTNE

HKS000  HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKSO000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000  HK$000
T TEr T TEx TR TExX TEx TEx TR TEx TR TEx
Segment revenve: AP EUCA ¢
Sales to external EENER
customers LHER 7874 4180 3148 566 434 48 112 128 - () 548 8548
Segmentases  AMEER 0092 709 17382 MW L L300 - 414 - (7094 58503 61726
Capital expendivure  EAR X 354 341 37 163 46 - - - - - 037 504
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % %

5. TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUE AND
GAINS
Turnover represents the value of professional IT
contract services rendered and the net invoiced value
of goods sold, net of value-added tax, returns and
allowances. An analysis of turnover, other revenue and

gains is as follows:

i~

5.

oy =
W LA K3

B S P 4R it 2 R AR B A IR B
ZABME D RS B 2 S E (ORI E
Bi - BB RN o B ER - HARA Rk
i Z MR

Group
AR H
2005 2004
CREDS TR E Y A
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
it 7 T T T 5T
Turnover: HER
Professional IT contract HE G R
services A & R B 54,822 85,148
Other revenue and gains: oA e A B I 45
Interest income H B g A 140 85
Management fee income (ESTE- S PN 134 312
Gross rental income FH <8 Ui A #BHH 206 41
Gain on disposal of Bt A R 2
subsidiaries i £ 27(a) - 2,260
Gain on disposal of B ] E
fixed assets I % 6,283 —
6,763 2,698
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ® x KW &

6. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6. ®BEBWBZEH
The Group’s loss from operating activities is arrived AL 2 S8 E B 2 s 1B TS R R (R
at after charging/(crediting) : A) FIIKEAEFE -
Group
PN
2005 2004
SRBHE BB
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
it 7t T T+
Depreciation Y5 13 1,069 1,786
Minimum lease payments R P 1 o Je 2
under operating leases REHAZ
in respect of land and I I FH %9 3ROE
buildings 1,733 2,003
Fixed assets written off * [i] 7 T L Y 184 =
Provision for impairment TR R & R 2 w2
of investment in e G I (E 3 A
non-consolidated
subsidiary™* 15(d) 1,788 —
Provision for amount due JHE Wi — [ W 7 4
from an associate* K TE 5 i * 16 - 101
Provision for other S Athy B Wi R IH
receivables** 5 A~ - 3,195
Reversal of provision for A7 B H A5 438 [ =
inventories™® (112) (269)
Auditors’ remuneration 2% S Fifi 4 460 580
Staff costs (including B Tl A
directors’ remuneration (62 45 B 53 7 i e
in note 7) : Z M) :
Wages and salaries™ T& KH & 19,971 27,163
Pension scheme FER N
contributions k3K 1,448 1,777
Less:Forfeited W R IRt R
contributions (35) (703)
Net pension R 4 R K
contributions** VR BH 1,413 1,074
Loss on disposal of 6 [ G
fixed assets 2 k1R - 13
Exchange gains,net ANIE W £ > VR AR (10) (129)
Unrealised (profit)/loss on HMIE 3 & %) 2
foreign exchange forward H A B (i F) 7
contract® i 8 * (65) 106
Net rental income FH 4 Wi A T B (206) (38)
Provision for doubtful debts* SR B 27 483
Write back of provision for 8 8] R AR
doubtful debts* i~ (354) (3,413)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g B & K

o &

6. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6. KBEBZEH )
(Continued)
* Included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the face * GIA L5 e R £ [HMFEHL > IF

of the consolidated income statement.

£ At 30 June 2005, no forfeited contributions were
available to the Group to reduce its contributions to

the pension scheme in future years (2004: Nil).

& In 2004, the provision was made during the year for a
receivable of EPRO Computer Systems (Guangzhou)
Company Limited and prior to the Group’s disposal of
its 75% held therein. The provision was made in
accordance with the provisioning policy for accounts

and other receivables.

“ The research and development costs in 2004 ar
HK$2,687,000 represented HK$2,036,000 staff costs
and HK$651,000 other costs. During the year ended
30 June 2005, the items were reclassified to conform

with current year’s presentation.

7o DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7.

Directors remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange and Section 161 of

the Companies Ordinance is as follows:

BIH T -

o W EERENH =1 H > HEIE#ER L
L Sk T {E A 55 J8 ) J  k 2D i R A 2R A
i Z B ARk & wf B s (= FF A
fE) o

’ TR FPIAE > JEEMH T BE A SE B ] A
T 55 BN R A (M) IR Al 2 75%
HE 7t B #% 2 7 Z BENC K T T A 1 o A B
T 7 HR A5 IR S B 5 B sk J LAl M W 5k
TH 2 f5 M A A i e

& B BT Z B g KB 3R AR
2,687,000 it IC €145 H L% 452,036,000 i
G R HoAh 3% A651,0008 70 - R #EE
BRAENHA =+ HIEFEER > BIFE
FEFZ B H  Z A TE H E E
;ggf °

g 4
AR 15 5 T A0 e A e 2 A

156 16 1166 78 T % B 2 A 4 )3 3 =5 I < 4
T @

Group
AR
2005 2004
TREDE e o SUIEES
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T TH T
Fees: M4
Executive directors AT E S - =
Non-executive directors AT HE = 40 —
Other emoluments: L Ath P 2
Executive directors: PATHE S
Basic salaries, other allowances and S 4~ HoAh R A
benefits in kind B ) F 2 379 379
Pension scheme contributions AR 4 FT B A K - 4
419 383
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ® Xk W A

7.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. WHEME )
(Continued)
The emoluments of all the executive directors and non- AERITERELRIEHFITEETHEN TFEE
executive directors fell within the band of nil to 1,000,000 JG #0 [# A ©

HK$1,000,000.

2005 2004

ZERRNA e 22 uiEe2

HK$°000 HK$°000

T T T T

Executive director A HATEFA - 4
Executive director B HMATEFB 379 379
Executive director C HMAITEFC - -
Executive director D HMAITEFD - -
Independent non-executive director A* M ST IE AT E FAY - -
Independent non-executive director B L IEMATEFB 20 -
Independent non-executive director C* M 57 I AT E FC 15 -
Independent non-executive director D* M 57 I BAT E F D> 5 -
Non-executive director A** FE AT HE A - —
419 383

* * A 4F T 2= AT

Newly appointed in the current year.

*x Re-designated from executive director during the year. *x A AT AT 3 F AT

# Resigned during the year. ’ 4 A BEAE

No further emoluments were paid by the Group to % £ [ BOE 41 1) UG 45 AT O i K R AT R
the executive and non-executive directors, either as an SEATATAn] Fo AR 4 > DAAE A =i A sl
inducement upon joining or to join the Group, or as AN R T IRy 22 A8 B sl A 7 W 2 B o 4R
compensation for loss of office. There was no A > HE Sl AR 4 AT 0] 2 P ik 32 % [R] =k
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed FEAT A 5 -

to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, there were no share options granted RPN - BOE A 1) S R 0 S IR S A A 4R T T
to the directors in respect of their services to the % T W R HE o
Group.
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~ =
B % R
8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

No director was included in the five highest paid
individuals during the year (2004:Nil). Details of the
directors’emoluments are set out in note 7 above. The
details of the emoluments of the five highest paid

employees are as follows:

=

8.

oy aE
TR AL
AR JE T A v L S A (L

FPULE - M) o FE R SRR ROR ESCRERE
7 o A% de e IR B 2 A AT ORS¢

Group

PN
2005 2004
TRENE e a2 JUIEES
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T T

Basic salaries, other allowances and FEARF 4 - HAbE &

benefits in kind B F 25 3,447 3,536
Pension scheme contributions FERY N 1 REe 82 80
3,529 3,616

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose emoluments fell within the following bands is

as follows:

P <2 A ~F T 5 80 B A 2 B ET R R R B
ZBOH R

2005 2004
SEEHE  CEENE
Number of Number of
employees employees
& B N FY=PN
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000%% 7T 5 4
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7T &
1,500,000%% 7T - 1
9.  FINANCE COSTS 9. MWERA
Group
N
2005 2004
SEEHE BB
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Fil 5t
Interest expenses on bank loans and overdrafts $R 17 883K &% 32 2 F) B B % 587 616
Interest expenses on other loans HoAh 4 3k 2 B S BH S 365 421
Total finance costs Pl B AR SRR 952 1,037
54 EPRO LIMITED % & A KR 2 ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F3#
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BoW® & M &

10. TAX 10. BiH
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the H A 7 B2 [ AT (A Slf7 S T A U E A AT o] 78 B
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising Bl A1) > SR A4 A v R A5 B A (—
in Hong Kong during the year (2004: Nil). EENE - ) o
Taxes on profits in respect of Group companies 7 A1 [ 7 HC At M TR RS 2 8 T 22 s R B
operating elsewhere have been calculated at the rates JH > DR IR B ) - R R
of tax prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions in ] - e £ B OBLF A VA RE W 2 BAT B R S
which they operate based on existing legislation, B
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
Group
N L]
2005 2004
ZERFLE — &4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T oo
Group: AEME :
Current -charge for the year A AR S
Mainland China B A - 119
Share of tax attributable to: FEAL AR A Rl 2 B
An associate — [H] B & 2 7 45 61
Total tax charge for the year £ A B I 7 MY AR 45 180
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss BT 1 R B T A 4R A AS 2 ® R HC [ S 4
before tax using the statutory rates for the countries Ko Whg N m I sE A B R 2 s e Bl R R E 2
in which the Company and its subsidiaries and Tt T B S BRL AT 7y B IR B R AL 2 IR
associates are domiciled to the tax expenses at the o
effective rates for the year is as follows:
Group
A 4 1
2005 2004
ZRERS e 92 JutfsS
HK$’000 HK$’000
SRUSE T
Loss before tax B B il s 12 (4,352) (10,322)
Tax at the domestic tax rates applicable 578 R A B B K 2
to losses in the countries concerned i 15 2 B A B %R
wt T 2 BiIH (614) (2,680)
Income not subject to tax RN (1,653) (254)
Expenses not deductible for tax R 430 2,859
Unrecognised deferred tax assets o 1ife 7R A% Ak B VE A RE 1,882 255
Tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate iz 7= A [E] PR R (1%)
of (1%) (2004: (1.7%)) (ZF DA (1.7%))
it 5 2 BLIH ST 45 180
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10.

1,

122,

B % %

TAX (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2005, a PRC subsidiary
of the Group was eligible for the exemption from
corporate income tax (“CIT”) for the two years starting
from the first year in which assessable profits were
generated, and a 50% exemption from CIT for the
following three years expiring on 31 December 2006.
In addition, another PRC subsidiary was eligible for a
concessionary CIT rate of 15% for the three years
ending 31 December 2005.

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders for the year ended 30 June 2005 dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company was
HK$5,647,000 (2004:HK$2,141,000) (note 26(b) ).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
net loss attributable to shareholders for the year of
HK$4,397,000 (2004: HK$10,750,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,600,800,000 (2004:
1,478,952,329) ordinary shares in issue during the

year.

Since the exercise price of the Company’s share options
was higher than the average market price of the
Company’s shares during the years ended 30 June 2005
and 2004 respectively, there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the years and
accordingly, no diluted loss per share amount was

presented.

56 EPRO LIMITED % 8 A R 2

=

10.

11.

12.

KO-
BLI (41)

BE - EEHRENH=THILERE A&
e il el = N RN I A = R e g
B s R AF BE BR G - 1 AR AR S A A 2
ARl (T4 2L RT3 8L 1) - 3 H AR = il 45
EHEERS0% > HE EENETH=
+—HIk - M4 BEZZZHFE+ A
=t—HI1E =R - 55— MRS A
A=A B AR RIS% -

JBe SR HE Al H %6 3685 v 2 s L

AN FEE ZFEHAFENT =10 IEF
JE 22 B i R R g B 2 IR AL B R 2E RS
2 B TR 8 55,647,000 J6 (2 Z Y4
2,141,000%5 5) (B 5E26(b)) °

5 )8 441

B i AR i 18 79 AR BE AR A I R R A s 4R
4,397,000 76 (ZFZF VU4 1 10,750,000
g6) > DA AR IR B EEAT 5 2 o T 44 8
1,600,800,000% ( — & & 4 4§
1,478,952,329/%) wF 4 o

P 7 7 2 7O 2 7 68 1959 3 79 1 8
SERFAER CFENEAA =+ H I
P A2 R 2 A4 AR % I
R AT 0 2 LA 2 98 3 -
Sl 9 2 6 M A
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2 = =3
B % owm ok MG
FIXED ASSETS 13. B2 % A
Group A A5 M
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold land Leasehold fixtures and  equipment Motor
and buildings improvements  equipment and software vehicles Total
g i~ TR
THRMT  MEEE RERRHE Tk A T it
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T Tt T T
Cost or valuation: A AR
At beginning of year E4 6,850 3,657 2,793 21,422 586 35,308
Additions A = 269 97 271 - 637
Disposals & (6,850) (1,992) (110) (252) (429) (9,633)
Write off R - (1,101) (460) (9,391) - (10,952)
Exchange adjustment 55 - - - 13 - 13
At 30 June 2005 RE-ZRIAE
AA=1TH = 833 2,320 12,063 157 15,373
Accumulated depreciation 2747 8 &
and impairment: Wi
At beginning of year £ = 3,039 2,397 20,630 446 26,512
Provided during the year AR R 47 1% 241 126 215 443 44 1,069
Disposals e (241) (1,785) (106) (241) (429) (2,802)
Write off R - (974) (443) (9,351) = (10,768)
At 30 June 2005 = K
AAZTH = 406 2,063 11,481 61 14,011
Net book value: REA
At 30 June 2005 RZBBLAE
AAZTH - 47 257 582 96 1,362
At 30 June 2004 R R WA
AHZTH 6,850 618 396 792 140 8,796

During the current year, the Group’s leasehold land

and buildings and its investment property (as disclosed

in note 14) were disposed to an independent third
party at a gain of HK$6,283,000.

TAAS AR > AR i A A Al S S
DU R HA G 3 (I 5 1407 B% 8%) & T8
SEES SO o MBS B BT R A 2 W A B
6,283,000¥% JG °
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< == =3
% s x W i
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. BEWE
Group
N
2005 2004
SRREE EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl Tl
At valuation: e AhE
At beginning of year ) 3,150 -
Transfer from leasehold land and buildings e FHL B = Hb S A o o - 3,150
Disposal & (3,150) -
At 30 June 2005 W ZEERAENT=Z+H - 3,150
15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15.  BHE A w2 HiE i
Company
VNN |
2005 2004
SRBHE BRI
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
Unlisted shares, at cost I b Ay > e AR 45,459 45,459
Provision for impairment I (E B (45,459) (45,459)
Due from subsidiaries JRE WAL IS Jeg 2 D R I 75,498 71,019
Provision for amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WSt BFF B 2 ) Kk TE 48 A (75,498) (71,019)
Due to a subsidiary JREASE — [ B} Jag 2 ] k IH (143) =
(143) —

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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B % ® Xk W A

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. KB A w2 B ()

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWE AR ZFEE R
Nominal

value of issued Percentage of

Place of and fully paid issued capital/

incorporation share capital/ registered
registration/ registered capital held by Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities

ik i e or, TR RHE AR A Z

wl I B A2 % JBeA /Gt CRITRA
EA KT 2 JBe A Z Thi ki 3 A 7 A3 B3

Direct Indirect

H#% fH B
ePRO (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Nil 100 — Investment holding
Y IR B 3 BE
EPRO Systems Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2; — 100 Investment holding
5B RHARA A s Non-voting deferred and provision of
HK$15,099,769 management services
2# TC T A BEE MK
15,099,769% 7 1 L 2 IR B
e 50 S HE AR S i 0y

EPRO Systems (HK) Hong Kong HK$100,000 — 100 Investment holding
Limited EiRES 100,000% I and provision of
5 BERE (Fik) professional IT
AR 7 contract services
BRI Rt e
B AR A # MBS
EPRO Systems (China) Hong Kong HK$925,000 — 100 Investment holding
Limited EiRES 925,000%% JC and provision of
5B Z & (hE) professional IT
AR 7 contract services
BB R
i S|
R %R
EPRO Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 — 100 Provision of
5 BRHE A RA T it 1,000,000 7T professional IT
contract services
i S|
R %R
EPRO Computer Systems Mainland China US$200,000 — 100 Provision of
(Shanghai) Company B A 3 200,000 7T professional IT

contract services

Limited (notes a &)

LEEME AL (i) RAtEEEN
ARAF (Hfitalb) R & 4 IR
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1

2

=

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15.

Name

e

EPRO Computer Systems
(Beijing) Company
Limited (notes a ¢&b)

o B R MR B (L)
ARAT (Bitakb)

EPRO Systems (S) Pte.
Limited (note b) ([t i)

Place of
incorporation
registration/
and operations
Ak it 3
il M e 48 %
KB

Mainland China
w3

Singapore

T

Nominal

value of issued
and fully paid
share capital/
registered
share capital
CR#T R AR
(& i3l
JBE AR 2 Thi A

US$700,000
700,000 TG

$$400,000
400,000 11l 3 G

Shanghai EPRO Software Mainland China US$200,000
Company Limited w2 A 200,0003 G
(notes b &)

it 5 E kA
HIRAF (ffaEelec)

Notes:

(a) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign

owned enterprises under the PRC law.
(b) Not audited by CWCC Hong Kong.
(c) This subsidiary is registered as a foreign investment

enterprise under the PRC law.

60 EPRO LIMITED % & A R /A A

P

it

bi )& 2w\l b 2 BE 2R ()

Percentage of

issued capital/

registered

capital held by Principal

the Company activities
HAA R F A Z
CETBRA

Ak ¥ A 43 o ESEE
Direct Indirect

HE fH] 4%

— 100 Provision of

professional IT

contract services

RO EEEM

B & A s

— 90 Provision of

professional IT

contract services

RO EEEM

BB & A s

= 90 Provision of

professional IT
contract services
i gl
R &R olie

o

(a)

(b)

(c)

i S B o ) 0 AR AR e R R T 2 A
7R A 3 -

S FF B A A B R 2K 6wt S S T A
¥ -

L R JEB 2 R B v [ A T A A
B o
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15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(d)

In August 2004, a subsidiary of the Group, EPRO
Systems Limited (“EPRO Systems”), and an
independent third party namely Chance Right
Limited, subscribed 55 shares and 45 shares in Core
Merit (BVI) Limited (“Core Merit”) for a cash
consideration of approximately HK$ 1.8 million and
HKS$ 1.4 million respectively. On 6 August 2004,
Core Merit entered into an agreement with Power
Gateway Limited, an independent third party for the
subscription of 65% and 35% interests in a JV
company, Digital China ePro Limited (*“DC ePro”),
for a cash consideration of approximately HK$3.2
million and HK$1.8 million respectively. Details of
the transaction were made by the Company in the
announcement dated 6 August 2004.

On 17 June 2005, Core Merit entered into an
agreement with Chance Right Limited, which had
become a connected party, pursuant to which Core
Merit agreed to issue 208 shares to this connected
party for a cash consideration of approximately HK$
6.8 million. By virtue of this agreement, the Group’s
interest in Core Merit was diluted from 55% to
approximately 17.9%. The Group treated such
dilution as a deemed disposal of partial interest in
Core Merit. Details of this transaction were made by
the Company in the announcement dated 21 June
2005.

After the deemed disposal of partial interest in Core
Merit, the Group re-assessed the recoverable amount
of the remaining 17.9% interest in Core Merit and
made full provision for the expected impairment loss

at HK$1,788,000.

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

U

HoOox W&

15.  HHE A vl Z iR 4t

(d)

AR MAENH > AL 2 [ E A R
%%%\ RAERAR (THERK]) R—4
M 5T %% = J7 Chance Right Limited %) Il 52
Wi 55 8% J% 45 % Core Merit (BVI) Limited
([ Core Merit)) Bty » FEut T ¥ K 2 4
{8 43 Al 9 %5 1,800,000%5 76 & 1,400,000%5
JG o A EZPUAE N H N H 5 Core Merit
Bl — @%j%:ﬁﬁfﬁ*{ﬁ%% > LA
RESEAFABBHES EARAA
T%(E%EPIEJ‘E%J) Z 65% K 35%HE 15 >
e G BT VP e 2 AR AR 43 Al 4 4% 3,200,000 95
JC 2 1,800,000%5 7C ° 38 5 2w AF #7 —
TRPAE AN H FIEZ g -

N EERAFENH T EH > Core Merithi
£ B 2% B % N I 2 Chance Right Limited
FISL— O lih sk > 81K > Core Merid] & 4%
— S B & A 496,800,000 T i) 1 B 4
N L BEAT208 LM = B A ML A 1 > A4S
4E [# A Core MeritZ HE 1 i 559% 4 1 % %)
17.9% ° 75 52 1% A7 B 4 0 A A0 2 ol
Core MeritZ BB HE 25 JE 3 o JETHRE 5 2
FEIERA —FFHAEANA Z+—HAE
Z i A e

JAFR £ Hi 8 Core MeritZ B I HE 2512 > A
45 [ 5 7 5Tl iR Core MeritZ 8 N 17.9%
HME #5 2 o] i ] ORE o NI k TE B 2 B
151,788,000% o 1 i 4> B M -

16. T8 2 vl op 2 M AR

Group
AREEH
2005 2004
SEETE CEENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
SRUTE Tl
Share of net assets A G @ﬁ 682 1,105
Due from associates JRE WAL T 7 A D R I - 128
Less: Provision for amounts due from W JE LWH /N @
associates P - (128)
682 1,105

A T PUAE o BEASN B G5 ER B R

The balances with the associates in 2004 were =N
G B T 4B [ 5 R A o

unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of

repayment.
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7 + =
B % W kM i
16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16. BEAuPZHER 4)

TEREEE AR 2RI T

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Percentage

Place of of ownership

incorporation/ interest
Business registration attributable Principal
Name structure and operations to the Group activities

ik S, ALK

EAlPE Fi 4t #5 It
Ht ES/ 20 KB S5 4 I FERH

2005 2004

ZRFLE “FTNE
Eprosonic Solutions Corporate Hong Kong 38 38 Provision of
Limited 2 H il professional
IT contract services
R S|
FHECA 4 IRs
EPRO Computer Systems Corporate Mainland China 25 25 Provision of
(Guangzhou) Company 2 H H ] g professional
Limited IT contract services
o E MR (M) R S |
AR Bz & # s
ePROgistics Limited Corporate Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of logistic
7 B ) i B PR A H 7 IT contract services
1 4 I B A
FHECA 4 IR B
eTradeGo Limited Corporate British Virgin 30 30 Investment holding
2 H Islands Eaegidle
PEJE BEL R

2GoTrade Limited Corporate Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of
e B BRA T 2 H 7 application services
provider services
fe e
72 XM &
3k e A

A A [ W s W) 22 R A 9 0 4 Y )
ANFEIBEREA o AEEBEAF Ao
SEHE K A0 A RE T 43 EL T s 8 00 ) o

The Group’s interests in the associates are indirectly
held through wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Group
is entitled to the same percentage of voting power and

profit sharing as denoted in the ownership percentage.
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Z ] F
MoB s ox M3
17. INVENTORIES 17. #H#
Group
PN
2005 2004
2 S e L PUAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
Contract work in progress ET T Z AR TRE 1,888 1,535
Goods in transit TR R 2 & 4,843 -
Merchandise for sale T S5 74 & 770 285
7,501 1,820
Contract work in progress ETh 2B TR
Gross amount due from contract customers JE W & %1% 5 3k JH AR5 1,888 1,535
Contract costs incurred plus recognised H A B EE 2R S A RAS T
profits less recognised losses to date L A 52 T 1) I A 52 s 4R 5,878 8,149
Less:Progress billings Wk P HE AT 2K (3,990) (6,614)
1,888 1,535
18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18. MBS MR Ak B S R
An aged analysis of trade and bills receivables as at the BB 5 Wk Te R R i 46 55 F #8522 H 4
balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows: s BREE AT R
Group
N
2005 2004
SEETE CEENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl Tl
Current to 3 months BV 1A 2= 340 H 10,901 5,303
4 to 6 months 4% 6ffl H 4,270 1,008
7 to 9 months 72 9 H 674 126
10 to 12 months 102 1218 H 260 252
Over 1 year — 4R b 8,717 8,955
24,822 15,644
Less:Provision for doubtful debts W R AR A (9,239) (9,566)
15,583 6,078

The credit terms given to the customers vary, and are
generally around three months and granted based on
the financial strength of the individual customers. In
order to effectively manage the credit risks associated
with trade debtors, credit evaluations of customers are

performed periodically by management.

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F3
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2 = o
B B ® X M
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 19. BeRBAESFMEEH KX CHMHEK
PLEDGED DEPOSITS
Group Company
A4 AT
2005 2004 2005 2004
ZEEFAF “FENE  ZERRE S _FLTNE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T#0 T T TG T8
Cash and bank balances B4 e SRAT 45 Bk 6,608 23,918 673 10,015
Time deposits E B A7 K 21,706 12,282 16,367 12,282
28,314 36,200 17,040 22,297
Less:Pledged time B L ERAT A&
deposits for banking M 454 2
facilities (note 22) & 1A AF 3K
(Mt it 22) (11,868) (6,501) (6,528) (6,501)
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KBl
S {HIE H 16,446 29,699 10,512 15,796

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$4,197,000 (2004: HK$3,310,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other

currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign

Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of

Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB

for other currencies through banks authorised to

conduct foreign exchange business.

REEEH > AEHEUANRE AR ZHE
R BRAT &5 B8 F5 4,197,000 J6 (2 Z Y4
3,310,000%570) o AN BRMEASHT LL B H S 2
FoAth AR ¥E > SR > AR A Hb A A E R
R0 Ko 5 ~ B 22 A5 A B AR E > AR 4R
[E] 8 o 2 e A T AT AN 22 5 2 R AT I
NG SR L N

20. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 20. AT RS ek B X HR
An aged analysis of trade and bills payables as at the EAS B2 55 Wk T Z2 98 i 45 55 H 20 il 4% B 52
balance sheet date, based on invoice date and payment H A B2 A 320 8 B 5t 2 BREE 4X BT dn T
due date, respectively, is as follows:
Group
A4
2005 2004
CREHF TR R4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# oo T T
Within 3 months 3f H N 10,666 2,589
4 to 6 months 4% 6 H 9 7
7 to 12 months 7% 1248 H 7 58
Over 1 year — 4P b 1,391 2,083
12,073 4,737
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= ] Ew
MoB s ox M3
21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21, i ME A sk B M £
Group Company
N VNN
2005 2004 2005 2004
ZERRAE EFNE ZRFHAE S LNE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T T ¥ T T T
Other payables At A 3 2 3,572 4,452 - -
Accruals JE it A 13,958 11,729 740 500
17,530 16,181 740 500
22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 22.  ®FE ST BT A A
OTHER BORROWINGS
Group
N
2005 2004
2= R e ee QUIRGE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt it T T T+ oo
Bank overdrafts, secured SRATE X A K (a) 6,566 6,970
Bank loans, secured SRITE K > A K (a) — 4,675
Loan from a related BB BN " 2 BE
company, unsecured AHE 415 (b) - 3,000
Loan from a director, — B RN
unsecured 90 5 4 (c) 5,169 5,169
11,735 19,814
Wholly repayable within T3 & TH R — N
one year: 2 BEE -
Bank loans, overdrafts MATEN ~ BEL K
and trust receipt loans (EEIRLE) 3=/ 6,566 8,220
Loan from a related T HBHEA R Z
company K IH - 3,000
6,566 11,220
Repayable in the second year 55 — 4F [A JiE {5 %2 ~ 3 IH 5,169 6,471
Repayable in the third to B = AF A LA A R R R
fifth years, inclusive Z #E (B 5 E R W) — 2,025
Repayable beyond five years 1. 4F 1% JfE {8 72 2 FIH - 98
11,735 19,814
Less:Portion classified as W FIAE R E) AR
current liabilities Z B4y (6,566) (11,220)
Long-term portion = HA R 7y 5,169 8,594
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=

o &

22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 22.  wHEEAT B IALAT K )
OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
Notes: it 7t
(a) The banking facilities of the Group are secured by: (a) A 4L E 2 SR AT A& T DL R B 4% TE AR B A
LN
(i) mortgages over the Group’s land and (1) DAAS 5 8] 57 A 7 s 1 R AR
buildings and investment property situated NH = H 2 iR T S8R 3 S
in Hong Kong, which have an aggregate (. FEEPI4E : 6,850,000% JC)
carrying value at 30 June 2005 of HK$nil (Bt 5k 13) Fo fi (= F & Py 4F -
(2004: HK$6,850,000) (note 13) and 3,150,000 7C) (Fff5E14) Z 3
HK$nil (2004: 3,150,000) (note 14), B 7 DA e B W) SE AR 2 A
respectively; a5 R
(i) corporate guarantees amounting to an (ii) Ay A 5% A HARE 15 28,300,000
aggregate of HK$28,300,000 exccuted by the JG (= EEPY4E 2 28,300,000%
Company (2004: HK$28,300,000) ;and J6) Z N AR o
(iit) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time (iii) AL E M AFERZ AT IR
deposits amounting to HK$11,868,000 11,868,000 70 ( — 2 2 U 4F -
(2004: HK$6,501,000). 6,501,000%5 7C)
(b) The loan from a related company in 2004 was (b) FAEE BN A 2 A T IR 47
unsecured, bore interest at Hong Kong dollar prime e T B 4 B R AR B R 2 M RE5HE
rate per annum, and had no fixed terms of repayment. S 4 5 7 R R K o
(c) The loan from a director is unsecured, bears interest (c) - 2 A B MR - 4 T
at Hong Kong dollar prime rate per annum, and is IR R R 4R B R R AR
not repayable on or before 26 September 2006. TREINEILA ZA08 H B winHZE A
2 o
23. DEFERRED TAX 23. EREBLH
The principal components of the Group’s deferred tax BIREEE H 2 REtRRF =2 - REFE -
assets not provided for, calculated at deferred tax rates N3 K v B 22 A0 A A R 4y Bl 2 17.5% (—
in Hong Kong, Singapore and the PRC of 17.5% FEPLE © 17.5%) ~ 22% (ZFF P4
(2004: 17.5%), 22% (2004: 22%) and 7.5% (2004: 22%) B 7.5% (ZFRMAE : 7.5%) 5t EHA
7.5%), respectively, on the cumulative temporary A5 1) R B 2 R A B TE I E 2 T AR A
differences at the balance sheet date, are as follows: T
Group
PN
2005 2004
SEBHE  CEENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
SRUTE Fis e
Tax losses i 15 M 15 19,126 17,307
Accelerated depreciation allowances i 2R 25 o B A 37 (430)
19,163 16,877
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e/ =+ =3
B B ® kK W i
23.  DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 23. BEBH 4)
At the balance sheet date, the Group had tax losses &S H > A B A A U R I 4 AR B
arising in Hong Kong and Singapore of approximately 5 5 48 5 Al %9 99,616,000s T (= F E [0
HK$99,616,000 (2004: HK$93,468,000) and 4 1 93,468,000% 7T) £ 3,128,000 7T (—
HK$3,128,000 (2004: HK$3,236,000), respectively, T4 ¢ 3,236,0004570) > Al FA HEE 2
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against A H AR 2 SRR I R o A AR A v R E AR
future taxable profits of the companies in which the AT A KB B 5 A W AR AR AR E R B Ui A
losses arose. The Group’s tax losses arising in the PRC 2 B 5 15 5 £55,600,000% o6 (—F &M
that are available for offsetting against the following 4F ¢ 3,172,000 70) o R ZEREEABELD
five years’taxable profits of the companies in which i ol — B IRF ] 2 B B8 A ) > 00 48 e L e
the losses arose are approximately HK$5,600,000 R SIE Tl TE T R AT HERR o
(2004: HK$3,172,000). Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time.
At 30 June 2005, there was no significant unrecognised AT EBEBEHAENH =+ H - A5 E N 8§
deferred tax liability (2004: Nil) for taxes that would T B A D sl A R 2 R A
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of JREAS 22 8 YL T A 365 A R A B JE 2 SAE
the Group’s subsidiaries or associates as the Group % 2 (9] [R] 0 SIF7 0 B KA B 2 A e R A S B
has no liability to additional tax should such amounts HAM (ZERMNA - ) -
be remitted.
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. A
Shares &
2005 2004
SRR HAE —EFNE
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T o T # 0
Authorised: EIE
100,000,000,000 shares 100,000,000,000/8 % i
of HK$0.01 each T {E0.019% 7T 2 B 4 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEFTREE -
1,600,800,000 shares 1,600,800,000/% 15 I
of HK$0.01 each T {EL0.0 175 TG 2 B {7y 16,008 16,008

A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued

N > AR R Z B BT A B B v A IR

share capital and share premium account during the Z MRS
year is as follows:
Number Issued Share
of shares share  premium
in issue capital account Total
B AT B2 Zi i &y
J& 4y ¥ H JBe A it 17 MR |
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
it 7t T# T Tt T ¥t
At 1 July 2003 A EER AR
tH—H 1,104,000,000 110,400 7,025 117,425
Reduction of share capital il ¥ i 4 (a) - (99,360) = (99,360)
Rights issue At iz (b) 496,800,000 4,968 497 5,465
Share issue expenses s 45y 35 47 B 52 (b) - - (1,402) (1,402)
At 30 June 2004 and 2005 A F U4 K
BT
NH=+H 1,600,800,000 16,008 6,120 22,128
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24.

B % %

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Pursuant to a special resolution on 28 August 2003,
the nominal value of all issued and unissued shares
in the share capital of the Company was reduced
from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 per share (the “Capital
Reduction”). The authorised share capital of the
Company of HK$1,000,000,000 divided into
10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each was reduced
to HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each. The issued share capital of
the Company of HK$110,400,000 was reduced to
HK$11,040,000 as a result of the change in par value
of shares in issue and the credit of HK$99,360,000
arising from the Capital Reduction was eliminated
against the accumulated losses of the Company
during the year (note 26(b) ). Immediately after the
Capital Reduction, the authorised share capital was
increased HK$100,000,000 to
HK$1,000,000,000 by the
90,000,000,000 new shares of nominal value of
HK$0.01 each.

from

creation of

A rights issue of nine rights share for every twenty
existing shares held by members whose names appear
on the register of members on 9 January 2004 was
made, at a subscription price of HK$0.011 per rights
share, resulting in the issue of 496,800,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each for a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$5,465,000 before share issue
expenses of HK$1,402,000, which were debited to
the share premium account as set out above. Share
options were granted on the same basis of the rights
issue above, which resulted in the increase of

24,135,188 share options during the year (note 25).

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and

the share options issued under the schemes are included

in note 25 to the financial statements.
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24.

P

WA ()

]ﬁﬂr

Wit -

(a) WPER —EE=FEN\H =+ /N\HEEZ
TR R R - ARX R KA T A 31T
R R FEAT R 2 T E i B fo. 104 7T
HI 9 25 0.0 176 76 ([HIW A ]) o A8 F]
235 5 AR H11,000,000,00095 76 > 43 £
10,000,000,000/% % i T {H 0. 1% 7€ 2 %
5y > HI Bk = 100,000,00085 JC > 4> L
10,000,000,000H% % & I {5 0.0 1% 7€ 2 %
B o HIR B BEAT e 2 T (E B o AR
] Z B AT AR H1110,400,000%5 06 E
HIl 96k 25 11,040,000 76 > HIl 6k B A 2 A2 2
HE /99,360,000 76 EL BLAS 28 /] A8 4F 2 2
s E 8 (3T 26(b)) o ZXBE A B
1% 5 8 AR 35 48 15 5%90,000,000,000/%
A B TH B 0.01#5 76 2 581 1 H1 100,000,000
W5 70 4 I % 1,000,000,000%5 7T °

(b) AN A R DA — A L H 4 8
R4 2 R > iR A 20 BLA AR 4y
TEBE O AL B I My 2 FEHESEAT (UL > BRI
1B 5 5 RS BB 60,0119 06 > B0 AT
496,800,000/ % A% T {E 0.0145 7T 2 X
3 o S DR T A 2 B 4 AR AB AR A (R
01 BR B 0 %% 17 B % 1,402,000% J6) £
5,465,000 7051 A B 63 i (B IR - 4% &
7t {3k J 22 AH ] BE HE 47 HY M M SR B4R
TA) 150 B B A 24,135,1881% (B 5E25)

Ji e e

AR 7 ) M B R R ) BAR R R S B B AT 2
S P 17 SOV B S AR B 25
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25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a)

Pre-IPO share option plan

In recognising the contribution of certain
directors of the Company to the growth of the
Group and/or the listing of the shares of the
Company on the GEM of the Stock Exchange,
the shareholders adopted a Pre-IPO share
option plan (the “Pre-IPO Plan”) on 24 July
2000. Pursuant to the terms of the Pre-IPO
Plan, 25,725,752 options to subscribe for
shares of the Company were granted to three
directors on 26 July 2000, at an exercise price
of HK$0.70, with a vesting period starting
from six months after 2 August 2000 until 23
July 2010. However, each of the grantees is
not allowed to exercise in aggregate in excess
of 25% of all the options granted within any
six-month period. The Pre-IPO Plan expired
on 2 August 2000, but the granted options

remain exercisable.

As a result of the rights issue of 496,800,000
shares on 9 January 2004 (note 24(b) ), the
exercise price of the aforesaid outstanding share
options was adjusted and the number of share

options outstanding increased in accordance
with the terms of the Pre-IPO Plan.
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1

2 o

=

i B i it

(a)

ERASALEGN SN 35 E S

LR AR A THEFE LS AL ESG
DhHE R T 8 A AR A B B0 45 DA FE
Wi 32 T B S A b T T AE 2 B Rk > 2%
W oEFEERELH U HRAE
ONEEEEN iR g E i | ANER N
BHAE BT wt® 1) - M E R A
JERT R 2 e AN F BN ZE
EERELH N H = HEHR
TR NN B R (i
25,725,752 > 4715 £50.70% G >
B s R REFE /N AR
NMaAZEE S EF—FFLH =
H ok o SR > £ & N A A5 AT A
ZSAE AT A I A A A 7
JRHE25% 7 BE I HE o B R A B 48 ik
mrEk R —FEEFFENH A F
1 M BB 2 W RE A AT T AT
fifi o

HA TR FIUAE— L H AT R
¥ 1T 496,800,000 B i (B 5%
24(b)) > HRAEE IR BB AT EFE
bk v R AT 2 B RE Z AT E
VE SR8 > T i 2R AT o B i 4 2 B
JRE AT e
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25.

B % %

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

= M

ALY

it

25. JEBeHEST S (4

R 4y B A B T B R R B (A
PLTR 7 TR AR 4F BEAR 8 8 Uk 2 B 48 i
Rl w8 % 10 R HE AT o 2 J R
Exercisable
period of  Date of grant of  Exercise price of
share options share options#  share options##
T I 2 B I i I 2
e H e
HK$
T
2 February 2001 26 July 2000 0.557
10 23 July 2010 ZERERE
“FF-K-A  tAZtRH
“HEZZ-ZF
tAZt+=H
2 February 2001 26 July 2000 0.557
10 23 July 2010 “EEZE
“EZ-5Z/ tAZARH
“HEZZ-%R
tAZ+=H
2 February 2001 26 July 2000 0.557
t0 23 July 2010 “EEFLRE
“EEF-FZH LTHZAAA
“HEZZ-FE
tAZ+=H

Pre-IPO share option plan (Continued) (a)
The following share options were outstanding
under the Pre-IPO Plan during the year:
Number of share options
TR e H
At At
Name or category 1 July 2004 Lapsed 30 June 2005
of participant MEBRMNE  during the year  R-FFLAE
2 5% 41 % B I A tA-H  KEERH AHZTH
Directors
£
Mr. Yip Sam Lo 19,863,670 - 19,863,670
E-HEL
Mr. Kwong Chak Chung* 11,907,459 (11,907,459) -
W
Mr. Leung Yiu Chown, 5,531,211 (5,531,211) =
Desmond*

Rt

37,302,340 (17,438,670) 19,863,670

##

Mr. Kwong Chak Chung and Mr. Leung
Yiu Chown, Desmond resigned as directors
on 28 April 2004. Pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Plan, Mr. Kwong and Mr. Leung had the
right to exercise the share options within
the period of 3 months following the said
date of resignation. The option was lapsed

during the year.

No options were exercised under the Pre-
IPO Plan during the year.

The vesting period of the share options is
from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is
subject to adjustment in the case of rights
or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital. The exercise
price of share options had been adjusted as
a result of the rights issue (note 24(b) ) on
9 January 2004.
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* JR AN S A R R R S A &
FPUAE P H = A\ H L
B o ML E YA BH AR AT s 8
JBB 5 A B B S A AT A bl BEAL H
A% =18 H AT (R HE < 4F 1
B HE [ R R 2

AEIA o SN0 9 U S AR 4 U B
18 A wi wt # T LAAT f

* S IS HE . S o 0 42 e A =
A7 (21 B 4 2 1L

i W FREARE 22 A7 {661 AT 450 3 At ik 3
ATAL B > BUAR N A AR 2 HoAth 4
BI85 B I 0] T SR o W 2 AT
A8 R B ZPU4E— H L H AT
A8 (BfF5E 24(b)) 1M B 7F 3 % -
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25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) on 24 July 2000 for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
is authorised, at its absolute discretion, to invite
any employees, including any executive
directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, to take up options to subscribe
for shares of the Company. The Scheme
became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the listing of the Company’s
shares on 2 August 2000. Further details of
the Scheme are also set out in the Prospectus
dated 27 July 2000.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the
Scheme, together with the options so granted
under the Pre-IPO Plan, may not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company or
to a maximum of 30% should the shareholder
renew the 10% limit from time to time which

have been duly allotted and issued.

The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 25% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to
sharcholders” approval in a general meeting of

the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences
after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than five years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the

expiry date of the Scheme, whichever is earlier.
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1

® K

Vi I B L B a)

(b)

Ji L e it )

ARNFARZFEEFELA A
PR — JEIE R S ) ([azmt#l)) >
B AE ] W AR 4R 1 ) KL SE S
EHERMZ & E% 2 HEG T
Kol iz o ARGERZETH - AR FEH
RN SRR MREE > G
AR 7y A BCHAT AT B T 2% B AT T AT
LSRN RO > DAGR A A W i
By o ZRPER —FEFRENA A
AN T By b TR AR > AU A
TAE o ZEt B R RO T
EEH L HRSEZEEE

2 o

EN/NEIRicE ) SN TNl s il
WE TV B 2 fe s ey B E - L [R] AR
L ARVONL RN TS (Eed e i
RE > A5 A S B A IR B 35 4T i
A TH B 10% 5 i B A IR 8 A 2L IF
AL HE KRBT AN A K A10% E
FR > I &% 5 45 30% ©

JAAEART 124 301 [ o AR 48R I T
BTG EKRSZEE 2K
B B A LAAS 4 ) AE: AT R A5
Z B BT 25% 4% PR o AN FEAZ
e A U b B W R - b ZH RE TR R
IS/ 3 N o R

P I JBe il 2 B2 4 T A3 e 224
HEFT28 F A AN - 1 AR B A ZH S AT
M T e A R EUAE - B
e 2 AT h M >
T T B g 4% B s % i AR e B
R ORI e e SN I A 1 2l
A (R ERE) -
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25.

81

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

1

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

2

=

25.

The exercise price of the share options is

determinable by the directors, but may not be

less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange

closing price of the Company’s shares on the

date of the offer of the share options;(ii) the

average Stock Exchange closing price of the

Company’s shares for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of the offer

and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s

shares.

The directors are aware that some of the terms

of the Scheme do not comply with the
requirements of Chapter 23 of the GEM

Listing Rules which became effective on 1

October 2001. If the Company intends to grant

options under the Scheme, the directors will

ensure that any of such grant of options

complies with the requirements of the said

Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

As a result of the rights issue of 496,800,000
shares on 9 January 2004 (note 24(b) ), the

exercise price of the outstanding share options

was adjusted and the number of share options

outstanding increased in accordance with the

terms of the Scheme.

The following share options were outstanding

under the Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

JE I HE %

At

1 July 2004
REBERE
tA—H

Category

of participant

2 5% i 0

Other employees 9,146,600

At A

Expired
during the year

AL BB

(9,146,600)

At

30 June 2005
P
AH=TH
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KO-
Vil JBE B k) (4

(b)  TEBEHESEE (A7)

W R 2 AT A s oh BE S E 0 M
AEERLL T = H 2B EE )&
O ) I 5 T B S HE B 4 A AE W 52
B Z Wi A8 5 R (i) AR 28 B 2
oz 0 IR HE 2 40 H M A 1L 22 5 H AE
it 2 Jifr 22~ 24 Wi T A A% (i) A A 7 ik

i 2 T H -
SR - T A 4l
FRM TR+ A — AR

Al ZE AR b T KR A28 2358 2 B o Ak
AR > A EAR B % s B4R R
SO TR IR IO — F Ak
At A AR bR ER 23 7 2 B o

PR R Z 00 4R — H L H AT 3t i 58
17496,800,000/8% Iz 73 (Ff 51 24(b)) -
AR a% w B 2 ARk > v R AT i I A
MEZATMHAE O MERE > T AR AT
W M 2 B H IR E B e

VLR 5 A 4F B AR 8 5% st ] i R A7 i
Z W

Exercise

Date of grant of price of share

share options# Exercise period options##

% th i I 1 of share options 193 #4

Z A [L1/¢ FATEIS I

HKS

T

19 December 2001 19 December 2001 0.092
“EREF to 18 December 2004
TZATAE ZEF-E+ZATAH

FEZWEFTZH AR
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

(b)

Share option scheme (continued)

The vesting period of the share options is from
the date of the grant until the commencement
of the exercise period.

# The exercise price of the share options is subject
to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus
issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital. The exercise price of
share options had been adjusted as a result of
the rights issue (note 24(b) ) on 9 January
2004.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
19,863,670 outstanding share options, which
represented approximately 1.2% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 19,863,670
additional ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each,
with aggregate proceeds before related issue

expenses of approximately HK$11,064,000.

26. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 31 of

this annual report.

As detailed in note 3 to the financial
statements, on the adoption of SSAP 30 in
2001, the Group applied the transitional
provision of SSAP 30 that permitted negative
goodwill in respect of acquisitions which
occurred prior to the adoption of the SSAP, to
remain credited to the capital reserve. The
amount of the negative goodwill remaining in
consolidated reserves, arising from acquisition
of subsidiaries (one of which has become
associate in last year) prior to the adoption of
SSAP 30 is HK$335,000 as at 30 June 2005
(2004: HK$335,000), which is stated at cost.
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1

HoOox M A

Yok OB BE L (4)

(b)

i 5

Jih L e wH ) (4D

5 P 2 Ji o A e 52 i A A
AT {6 30 B 43 g L

# i e HE 2 AT ol ] A5 b R
ATALB > SR A AR 2 HoAth 45
Bl 58 5 1T W] T R R o R ACHE X AT
A8 P = Y 4 — 1 L H HEAT
HE B (Bt 5k 24(b)) 1 E 7 3 % -

A& B > AN 419,863,670 i
AT W PR > AH A AR N A E
H 317 2 B #91.2% o MR 2w
BRE AR > 2% BT 3 0 R AT
i e 19 3K 9547 19,863,670 e 5 ik
TA] {E.0.01#5 J6 2 BH A1 40 i > P 15
TR AR AR (10 B AH BH 35 4T BA SR A
11,064,000% JG °

N L

o 44 S B T o T 4 I 2 4
L Y AL B A 31 2
fHE T % -

SN S R AR B 3 T o o R
— 4 R4 € B ME R AE 3098 4%
A £ H 5] kB e R 2B 3095 2
R PR S > HERE R PR AN R e nh R
5 e R i A AT 2 e T R AR 2 R
B R A AR R B E R
FARA=Z1TH ERWNZETES
L) 55 3.0 5% T Wi M B 8 /] (Rl R —
] L 58 2R 40 48 2 Tk 48 0 | T 2 AR 2
B PR 5 335,0009 00 (T E N
A 1 335,000 70) > A AFE R A A fil
5 N 8 DA R A (B 31 B o
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B % %

RESERVES (Continued)

KO-
fii 46 (#%)

Company (b) PN/
Share
premium Accumulated
account losses Toal
B A i 159 M AR i
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt Tt RREP
At 1 July 2003 o EE=FELHA—H 24,999 (115,540) (90,541)
Reduction of share capital ) i B A - 99,360 99,360
(note 24(a)) (Mt 7 24(a)
Rights issue (note 24(b) ) R (Bt it 24(b)) 497 - 497
Share issue expenses (note 24(b)) I8 085 47 BH S (M E24(8)) (1,402) - (1,402)
Net loss for the year A P s 4R T AR = (2,141) (2,141)
At 30 June 2004 AEERMAEASA=Z1H 24,094 (18,321) 5,773
Net loss for the year AN AF JE s 48 VR AR = (5,647) (5,647)
At 30 June, 2005 AZEFNAEASNA=Z1H 24,094 (23,968) 126

The share premium account of the Company
includes (i) premium arising from the new issue
of shares in the current and prior years netted
of share issue expenses;and (ii) the difference
between the consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation upon listing in July 2000 over
the nominal value of the share capital of the

Company issued in exchange therefor.

In accordance with the Companies Law (2000
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. The share premium may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid

bonus shares.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

g B & K

27. HEBLEWERERE

o

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (a) B [ A Wl
2005 2004
e S e e quigse
HK$°000 HK$000
T T T T
Net assets disposed of: HEMUTFSKHZFERE -
Fixed assets & PE - 705
Inventories ey - 16,891
Trade receivables JE U B 7 Bl K - 4,022
Prepayments, deposits and TS KA - 7 R
other receivables HCAthy 8 Wi 3 IH - 6,974
Cash and bank balances Bl 4 S SR AT S5 A7 - 2,282
Trade payables JRE Ash B 2 HR - (15,057)
Amount due to a shareholder JRE AT — 24 1 R K IH - (1,193)
Accrued liabilities =R - (11,673)
Bank overdrafts RAT 5 X - (10)
- 2,941
Reserves released upon disposal B IR o R 2 et AR - (38)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H BB A\ 2 0z — 2,260
- 5,163
2005 2004
“ERRA R E Y A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Satisfied by: PLTR 51 4% JH 3 A -
Cash Bl 4 - 4,375
Reclassification to interests in P B B 2 ) RE g
associates from interests in BOHT o B E WS AN F
subsidiaries* HE i * - 788
- 5,163
* Exchange fluctuation reserve of HK$25,000, * A H B B 2 I RE AR R 2 b Dk

which was retained on disposal of the

subsidiaries, was net off against the

fi# 25,0009k 7C B F A 41K 81 2 87
4 $H 4 %11788,00095 IC ©

reclassification amount of HK$788,000.

BE _FFEWNFENH =1+ HIEF
BE o B N F] A A 2 g 2
FHE #k20,567,000%5 7 > S /b AS 5
2 AR SR B A% B R BT A SR RORE 25
i 5 1845 2 171,000 7T 2 518 -

The disposed subsidiaries contributed
HK$20,567,000 to the Group’s turnover and
loss of HK$171,000 to the

consolidated loss after tax and before minority

Group’s

interests for the year ended 30 June 2004.
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27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27. EHEBERERRRE @)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) H B Btk E A Rl (AF)
An analysis of net outflow of cash and cash b B g S | 2 B A e B4 AF (H IE
equivalents in respect of disposal of subsidiaries H it @5 2 o A sl an
is as follows:
2005 2004
ZRENAF TP
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T TH#IT
Cash and bank balances disposed of 2 Bl KR AT &5 B - (2,282)
Bank overdrafts acquired O Wi 2 SR AT 985 S - 10
Cash consideration 4R - 2,000
Net outflow of cash and i B A Al 2 B4 M
cash equivalents in respect of Re%HEEE
disposal of subsidiaries i 5 AR - (272)
During the year ended 30 June 2004, the AEBEPRBE _FEFNENH =+
Group disposed of partial interests in certain H 1E 4 B2 8 5 1 B g A\ 2 3
subsidiaries at consideration of HK$4,375,000, WE#5 > ARME £54,375,000% 0 > HoH
HK$1,000,000 and HK$2,000,000 were 1,000,000 5 % 2,000,000% 7t E 7>
received during the year ended 30 June 2005 AR R R AR K R R A
and 2004 respectively. At the balance sheet ANHAZ+ B IEF R - R & HE
date, the aggregate outstanding sales proceeds H o> R WO 2 8 & B 45 3CH
receivable of HK$1,375,000 were included in 1,375,000 7C > E 5 A FEAT 3K IH -
prepayment, deposits and other receivables. ¥ 45 e F At BE U ERIE o
(b) Disposal of a jointly-controlled entity and an (b) B L ] P A A R R IR A ]
associate
The amounts represent the settlement of RAE R IR R R AN
balance of the proceeds from the disposal of = R AR R RS
the jointly-controlled entity and an associate N ) B T 4 T A 2K
during the year ended 30 June 2003. THERHH -
28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 28. WA

(a)

(b)

The Company had contingent liabilities in respect
of corporate guarantees for banking and finance
lease facilities granted to certain subsidiaries and
an associate in the aggregate amount of
HK$28,300,000 (2004: HK$29,695,000). At the
balance sheet date, such facilities were utilised by
the subsidiaries and an associate to the extent of
the aggregate amount of HK$4,710,000 (2004:
HK$11,894,000).

At 30 June 2005, the Group had executed
performance bonds of HK$8,880,000 (2004:
HK$8,880,000) in respect of certain services
provided by the Group.

76 EPRO LIMITED % & A BR /A #l

(a)

(b)

AN ) A MR A ) B —
N mVEAL 2 SR AT K il L A AR
fE 2 2N & 5 4% O T T A B8R B
4 %H % 28,300,000 o0 (& Y
4 129,695,000 78) o R&EE H >
B Jog 2 = e — [ gk 4 N ) 2 8 ) %
SRR A 34,710,000 78 (L EE
PO 4 0 11,894,000% JC) ©

ATEERENHZTH > REH
A 4L E I 2 A TR B 4L B
#) {4 75 8,880,000% JG (- FEE PU4E ¢
8,880,000 JC) ©
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29. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 29. WBHMAHRH

(a) As lessor (a)

The Group leases its investment property (note
14) under an operating lease arrangement, with
a lease negotiated for a term of two years. The
terms of the lease generally also requires the
tenant to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then

prevailing market conditions.

At 30 June 2005, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under a non-
cancellable operating lease with its tenant

falling due as follows:

% AL

A A AR 5 28 A 4 22 PR o AH R4
T (BE5E14) - &8 2 FH 4
A7 o AH A6 3 — TR B E AH % 78
S I R A i Te vl AR 9 IRF 2 T L
E W R A & o

REBEREAAS+A - RIEA
e ) 5 FEL 2 BT 57 22 R T 0 2405 L
20 280152 LA 4 90 05 B2 o A I
R & A I T -

Group

A4
2005 2004
SRBHE BRI
HK$°000 HK$’000
T# T T 0
Within one year — 4N 8 247

In the second to fifth years, inclusive 0B
(L 15 B B W 4F) - 216
8 463
(b) As lessee (b) Ve 2 7 AL

The Group leases certain of its office properties
and staff quarters under operating lease
arrangements. Such leases are negotiated for

terms ranging from one to three years.

At 30 June 2005, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

A A AR 9 AQ 8 A A 2 PE AL T A T
WNZEWER B TIES - K2
VI ERNF— 2 =4 -

MEFERENA=+H » REAR
Al EE A AL A AR EZE R LA R
A SO 2 R AR {1 B A AL < AR
Bl

Group
PN
2005 2004
SEEHE BB
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T T ot
Within one year — 4N 1,209 684
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 5 R AAE
(B 45 H B W 4F) 557 218
1,766 902
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31.
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COMMITMENTS 30. R
At 30 June 2005, the Group had outstanding foreign AERERAENA=ZTH > REBEBEAS
exchange forward contract to sell JPY18,810,900 RATHE 2 SMIE = 54 > 2 418,810,900 H
(equivalent to HK$1,358,000) and buy US$182,453 B (#H 5% 74 1,358,000% 76) 1 & A 182,453
(equivalent to HK$1,423,000). The net unrealised 270 (FHSE R 1,423,000 70) » A&EH H >
profit of this outstanding foreign exchange forward LG TE 1 R AT (2 A1 G 4 2 oK 8 B i
contract at the balance sheet date amounted to F) 55 65,0005 J6 - 5% FE R IEM A EK > i
HK$65,000 and the amount is insignificant hence it STARFEFE B E o
was credited to the income statement during the year.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. BIEALZRY
In addition to the transactions and balances detailed o I S5 B 75 i 35 T E 0l 2 38 5 B A R AN -
elsewhere in these financial statements, during the year, A AR B > A 42 [ BTS2 O\ R T B N
the Group had the following transactions with an HEAT LI AR Rl 2 T8 A A fn
associate and related companies in which certain X
directors of the Company have beneficial interests:
2005 2004
ZRELS R 4
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
it 7t T#T T+
Management fees received B — [ & S Al i i 2
from an associate (=B (a) - 312
Interest paid to related SCAT T BRI N ) B
companies and a director — 4 H R B (b) 365 421
Disposal of a subsidiary H A — ] — 4%
controlled by a director o /N (c) - 2,625
Notes: Mt -
(a) Management fees were charged to an associate in (a) B TG AR 48 4R A 2 AT B S R T 1)
respect of the administrative support provided by — [t S FRE - N 2 T E A '
the Group which was determined by mutual P45 1 A 458 B Jy 7 T AR T A e
negotiation with reference to the actual costs
incurred.
(b) Interest was charged on the amounts advanced by (b) I T B HE S 7] o — 4% BT T 2 K

related companies and a director at Hong Kong dollar

prime rate per annum.
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TH 14 i 7T B 4 R R AR B RHOT
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

(d)

ANNUAL

In 2004, the Group disposed of its 75% equity
interest in EPRO GZ to a company, 15% and 85%
of the equity interests of which were held by
employees of EPRO GZ and a close family member
of a director of the Company, respectively, who has
resigned during the year ended 30 June 2004, for a
consideration of HK$2,625,000, and resulting in a
gain of HK$1,253,000. The aforesaid director was
also a key management personnel of EPRO GZ
during the year ended 30 June 2004. Pursuant to
the sales and purchase agreement, the Group waived
the repayment from EPRO GZ of an aggregate
amount of HK$13,244,000 due to certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Of the total consideration of
HK$2,625,000, HK$1,000,000 was received during
last year and the outstanding sales proceeds receivable
of HK$1,625,000, to be settled by June 2005, has
been included in prepayment, deposits and other
receivables as at 30 June 2004. The consideration of
the disposal transaction was mutually agreed by both

parties.

In August 2004, a subsidiary of the Group, EPRO
Systems Limited (“EPRO Systems”), and Mr. Yu Wei
Bo (“Mr. Yu”), an independent third party subscribed
55 shares and 45 shares in Core Merit (BVI) Limited
(“Core Merit”) for a cash consideration of
approximately HK$1.8 million and HK$1.4 million
respectively. On 6 August 2004, Core Merit entered
into an agreement with Power Gateway Limited, an
independent third party for the subscription of 65%
and 35% interests in a JV company, Digital China
ePro Limited (“DC ePro”), for a cash consideration
of approximately HK$3.2 million and HK$1.8
million respectively. Details of the transaction were
made by the Company in the announcement dated 6
August 2004.

On 17 June 2005, Core Merit entered into an
agreement with Chance Right Limited (“Chance
Right”), which was wholly owned by Mr. Yu,
pursuant to which Core Merit agreed to issue 208
shares to Chance Right for a cash consideration of
approximately HK$6.8 million. By virtue of this
agreement, the Group’s interest in Core Merit was
diluted from 55% to approximately 17.9%. The
Group treated such dilution as a deemed disposal of
partial interest in Core Merit. Given that Chance
Right is a substantial shareholder of Core Merit,
Chance Right is a connected person of the Company.
Therefore, the deemed disposal constituted a
connected transaction of EPRO Ltd. No
consideration was paid by EPRO Ltd and EPRO
Systems. Details of this transaction were made by
the Company in the announcement dated 21 June
2005.

REPORT 2005 %R

1

HoOox M A

Bl A L2 5 (4)

/}ff“ o

(c)

(d)

(#)

7 B [ s T DU AF BE () — [B] A T M
75% 5 BN BERE > P 159% & 85%43 Hil
Mo ERMNZEE U LANE —ZER
(BR#E TR P4EANH =+ H IL4EE
BEAT) 2B ARE 552,625,000
JC o R AR 0 251,253,000 T o ALE
TEBEPAENH =+ HIREE > Ll
HIR S EEMNZ EEEHAR - BiE
B Tk o A5 42 B SE i B ) R N E
bl N ST B S /N 2
13,244,000%5 JC 2 3K JH - 24 92,625,00045
JC 2 BB E P > 1,000,000 7T B A &
A RE S B 5 T o Wi B 22 i B T A
I 1,625,000% 70 G —FF HAERN A
RITE ) B = FFWESNH =T HFFA
TEATBRIE ~ e e HoAh RE ik IH o
25z RIEHER I E -

A FRMAENH > AL 2 E A A
SERMARNT ([HERH]) BT
o5 =05 fr R Se A (TarSE2E]) 40 3l LA
4 B %1,800,000 ¥ JC 5 1,400,000%5 7T
#8558 K 45 Core Merit (BVI) Limited
([ Core Merit)) Z Bty o i & ZF Y4
JVH 7N H > Core Merit Bl 37 55 = J7
Power Gateway Limited#] 32 — 153 7% &% -
Core Merit5i 5% 8 37 55 = 7 47 Bl LA Bl & %
{5 %73,200,000% 7C & 1,800,000 #5 7T 52 i
4 & A 7 Digital China ePro Limited ([DC
eProl) Z 65% K 35% Mt o 47 B 3¢ 5 2
18 SOR AR A R R UAE N S H T
BZAMIA -

A ZEERFENH TEH > Core Meritki
Chance Right Limited ([ Chance Right] >
Hhar ek R EHEA) 7L — ik - B8
It > Core Meritlf] & 3% 17 208 i I fir T
Chance Right » 34 U 49 %% 6,800,000
JC o A JE AT UL 1 EE AR 0 A8 4E iR Core
MeritZ HE 25 HH 55%#E T 2= 47 17.9% ° A
A [ i b ol 0 R P Ay — TE LA
A Core MeritZ #B 43 HE £ © 3% A Chance
RightJj Core MeritZ & Z 3 > Chance
Right /9 A8 A 7l Z B & o B > 3
F 8 =R TE A AR 5 B A PR W) 22 B 3e
5 o BB BRI R R 5 B R SR S AHE
Al fRAE o 632 5 2 R AR MR AR 4 Wl i —
FEHFENH T HRIBEZ AR -
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32.

33.

B % %

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 20 July 2005, a subsidiary of the Group, EPRO
Systems (China) Limited (“EPRO China”) entered into
the agreement with ICTs Hong Kong Limited pursuant
to which EPRO China agreed to sell its remaining
25% interest in an associate company, EPRO
Computer System (Guangzhou) Limited (“GZ EPRO”)
for a consideration of HK$875,000. The Group will
not share any profit or loss generated by GZ EPRO
upon completion of the disposal of the 25% interest
in GZ EPRO. Details of the transaction were made by
the Company in the announcement and circular dated
20 July 2005 and 11 August 2005 respectively.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26 September
2005.
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32.

33.

oy =
55 1 49

ATERRAELH T H - AEEZKE
NEGERS (PE) ARAR ([ 5E$
B |) BLICTs Hong Kong Limited#] 32 — 15
fh ok > BRUL - BHE PR EE - ENRE
875,000% 7T 1 & R — M & A7 5 H &
I R A8 (BEMD ARRA R ([REM 5 ) 2 &
T 25%MHE AR o AN 4R F A I R BN 5 H 2
259% M a5 7215 A 0 A5 B M 2 B T 7 R
ZAEAT i P B 18 o 28 5y 2 wEAE HOR AR
AR —EERE LA - FHRER
FAENA +— B Fl 82 A i sk A e

S 5 W e 2 Hk +f

MBWMER _FEFRFEIA Z+ N HEE
o LI -
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